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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS oR 28 200k
A. Rule as to Use of Form 6-K. N
oA

This form shall be used by foreign private issuers which are required to furnish
reports pursuant to Rule 13a-16 or 15d-16 under the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934.

B. Information and Documents Required to be Furnished.

Subject to General Instruction D herein, an issuer furnishing a report on this form
shall furnish whatever information, not required to be furnished on Form 40-F or previ-
ously furnished, such issuer: (i) makes or is required to make public pursuant to the law
of the jurisdiction of its domicile or in which it is incorporated or organized, or (ii) files
or is required to file with a stock exchange on which its securities are traded and which
was made public by that exchange, or (i) distributes or is required to distribute to its
secunity holders.

The information required to be furnished pursuant to (i), (ii) or (iil) above is that
which is material with respect to the issuer and its subsidiaries concerning: changes in
business; changes in management or control; acquisitions or dispositions of assets; bank-
ruptcy or receivership; changes in registrant’s certifying accountants; the financial
condition and results of operations; material legal proceedings; changes in secunties or
in the security for registered securities; defaults upon senior securities; material increases
or decreases in the amount outstanding of securities or indebtedness; the results of the
submission of matters to a vote of security holders; transactions with directors, officers,
or principal security holders; the granting of options or payment of other compensation
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to directors or officers; and any other information which the registrant deems of material
importance to security holders.

This report is required to be furnished promptly after the material contained in the
report 1s made public as described. The information and documents furnished in this
report shall not be deemed to be “filed” for the purposes of Section 18 of the Act or oth-
erwise subject to the liabilities of that section.

If a report furnished on this form incorporates by reference any information not pre-
viously filed with the Commission, such information must be attached as an‘exhibit and
furnished with the form.

C. Preparation and Filing of Report.

This report shall consist of a cover page, the document or report furnished by the
issuer, and a signature page. Eight complete copies of each report on this form shall be
deposited with the Commission. At least one complete copy shall be filed with each
United States stock exchange on which any security of the registrant is listed and regis-
tered under Section 12(b) of the Act. At least one of the copies deposited with the
Commission and one filed with each such exchange shall be manually signed. Unsigned
copies shall be conformed.

D. Translations of Papers and Documents Into English.

Reference is made to Rule 12b-12(d). Information required to be furnished pursuant
to General Instruction B in the form of press releases and all communications or materi-
als distributed directly to security holders of each class of securities to which any
reporting obligation under Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Act relates shall be in the English
language. English versions or adequate summaries in the English language of such mate-
rials may be furnished in lieu of original English translations.

Notwithstanding General Instruction B, no other documents or reports, including
prospectuses or offering circulars relating to entirely foreign offerings, need be furnished
unless the issuer otherwise has prepared or caused to be prepared English translations,
English versions or summaries in English thereof. If no such English translations, ver-
sions or sumimary have been prepared, it will be sufficient to provide a brief descnptlon
in English of any such documents or reports. In no event are copies of original language
documents or reports required to be furnished.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its bebalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

The Wharf (Holdings) Limited
egistrant)

Date April 22, 2004 By -—
\_{Signamure)

Name: Wilson Chan

Title: Company Secretary

'Print the name and title of the signing officer under his signature.
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IMPORTANT

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
document, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

THE WHARF (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
STOCK CODE: 4 -

Directors: Registered Office:
Mr. Peter K. C. Woo, GBS, JP (Chairman) 16th Floor, Ocean Centre,
Mr. Gonzaga W. J. Li (Senior Deputy Chairman) Harbour City, Canton Road,
Mr. Stephen T. H. Ng (Deputy Chairman & Kowloon,

Managing Director) Hong Kong

Mr. David J. Lawrence (Executive Director)
Professor Edward K. Y. Chen, GBS, CBE, JP*
Mr. Paul M. F. Cheng, JP*
Dr. Raymond K. F. Ch’ien, GBS, CBE, JP*
Mr. Erik B. Christensen
Mr. Vincent K. Fang*
Mr. Hans Michael Jebsen, BBS*
Mr. Christopher P. Langley, OBE*
Mr. Quinn Y. K. Law
Ms. Doreen Y. F. Lee
Mr. T. Y. Ng
Mr. James E. Thompson, GBS*

22nd April, 2004
(* Independent Non-executive Directors)

To the Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES AND TO ISSUE SHARES
AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

1. At the Annual General Meeting of The Wharf (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) held
on 30th May, 2003, ordinary resolutions were passed giving general mandates to
directors of the Company (the “Directors™) (1) to repurchase shares of the Company on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) of up to 10 per cent.
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 30th May, 2003; and (ii) to allot, issue
and otherwise deal with shares up to a limit equal to (a) 20 per cent. of the shares of the
Company in issue as at 30th May, 2003, plus (b) (authorised by a separate ordinary
resolution as required by the Rules Govermng the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules™)) the nominal amount of any shares repurchased by the
Company.
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Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules, these general mandates will
lapse at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM™) for 2004, unless
renewed at that meeting. Resolutions will be proposed at the AGM to renew these:
mandates, and the Explanatory Statement required by the Listing Rules to be sent to
shareholders in connection with the proposed repurchase mandate is set out in the
Appendix to this document.

Following the recent amendments to the Companies Ordinance and the Listing. Rules,

the Directors also recommend corresponding amendments be made to the Articlés of

R yw—,

Association of the Company (“Articles of Association”). In particular, section 1 573(1)‘ :

of the Companies Ordinance has been amended to the effect that a director may: b

removed by an ordinary resolution instead of a special resolution, notmthstandmg:;g“ ; AR

anything in a company’s constitutional documents or in any agreement between: the

company and the director. Furthermore, various amendments have been introduced to
the Listing Rules concerning corporate governance issues such as the giving of notices in
relation to proposed directors before election at general meeting and the variations of the
restrictions on voting by members at general meeting and by directors at board meeting.
Please refer to the special resolution set out in the notice of the AGM of this document
for details of the proposed amendments to the Articles of Association.

Set out below are the details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the AGM:

Mr. Hans Michael Jebsen, BBS, aged 47, is an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company. He is the chairman of Jebsen & Co. Ltd. and a director of Hysan
Development Co., Ltd. He currently holds a number of public offices, namely, the vice-
president of World Wide Fund for Nature Hong Kong, the chairman of the Friend’s
Committee of the Asian Cultural Council Hong Kong, an honorary fellow and court
member of the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology, as well as a member of
the Council for Sustainable Development, Hong Kong European Union Business Co-
operation Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, World Wide Fund
for Nature International Board of Trustees, Asian Cultural Council Board of Trustees
~ and Advisory Board of the Hong Kong Red Cross. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star of the Hong Kong SAR in 2001. He was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 1st September, 2001. After his re-election at
the forthcoming AGM, he will continue to serve on the board of Directors for a period of
approximately 3 years until he becomes due to retire by rotation again in accordance
with the Articles of Association. So far as the Directors are aware, as at 14th April,
- 2004 (being the latest practicable date for determining the relevant information), Mr
Jebsen did not have any interest (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance) in the shares of the Company. He does not have any relationship
with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company. Mr. Jebsen is currently receiving a Director’s fee at the rate of
HK$35,000 per annum. Such fee was determined by the Company as a reasonable
amount. He has no service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) and therefore he receives no emolument from the Group other than the
Director’s fee.



Mr. Gonzaga Wei Jen Li, aged 74, is the Senior Deputy Chairman of the Company and
also a director of some of the Company’s subsidiaries. He is also the senior deputy
chairman of Wheelock and Company Limited (“Wheelock™), the chairman of Harbour
Centre Development Limited (“HCDL”), Marco Polo Developments Limited (“MPDL”)
and New Asia Realty and Trust Company, Limited (“New Asia”) and also the chairman
and chief executive officer of Wharf China Limited. He was appointed as a Director of .

the Company on 17th September, 1980. After his re-election at the forthcoming AGM, |

he will continue to serve on the board of Directors for a period of approximately 3 years
until he becomes due to retire by rotation again in accordance with the Articles of
Association. So far as the Directors are aware, as at 14th April, 2004, Mr. Li had
interest (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) in
686,549 shares of the Company. Mr. Li does not have any relationship with any other
Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company,
apart from being the senior deputy chairman of Wheelock, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and a director of some subsidiaries of Wheelock. Mr. Li is
currently receiving a Director’s fee at the rate of HK$35,000 per annum. Such fee was
determined by the Company as a reasonable amount. Under the existing service contract
between the Group and Mr. Lj, the total amount of his emoluments, inclusive of basic
salary, various allowances and accommodation benefit, is HK$3.67 million per annum;
payable on monthly basis. In addition, discretionary bonuses are normally payable twice: -

a year under the service contract to Mr. Li with the amount of such bonus to be fixed . -

unilaterally by the employer in each year. The total amount of such annual bonus paid to
Mr. Li during the past 12-month period is HK$3 million. The amount of emoluments,
including the discretionary bonus, payable to Mr. Li under the service contract is
determined by the Company with reference to the level and/or range of remuneration
package normally granted by employers in Hong Kong to a senior executive of
comparable calibre and job responsibilities. Such emolument was also determined by
the Company as a reasonable amount.

Mr. Tze Yuen Ng, aged 56, is a Director of the Company and a director of some of the
Company’s subsidiaries. He is also a director of HCDL, MPDL and New Asia. He
joined the Company in 1985 and was appointed as a Director of the Company on 1st
June, 1998. After his re-election at the forthcoming AGM, he will continue to serve on
the board of Directors for a period of approximately 3 years until he becomes due to
retire by rotation again in accordance with the Articles of Association. So far as the
Directors are aware, as at 14th April, 2004, Mr. Ng had interest (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) in 178,016 shares of the Company. Mr.
Ng does not have any relationship with any other Directors or senior management or any
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company, apart from being a director of
some subsidiaries of Wheelock. Mr. Ng is currently receiving a Director’s fee at the rate
of HK$35,000 per annum. Such fee was determined by the Company as a reasonable
amount. Under the existing service contract between the Group and Mr. Ng, the total
amount of his emoluments, inclusive of basic salary and various allowances, is HK$1.5
million per annum, payable on monthly basis. In addition, discretionary bonuses are
normally payable twice a year under the service contract to Mr. Ng with the amount of
such bonus to be fixed unilaterally by the employer in each year. The total amount of
such annual bonus paid to Mr. Ng during the past 12-month period is HK$0.51 million.
The amount of emoluments, including the discretionary bonus, payable to Mr. Ng under
the service contract is determined by the Company with reference to the level and/or
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range of remuneration package normally granted by employers in Hong Kong to a senior
executive of comparable calibre and job respomnsibilities. Such emolument was also
determined by the Company as a reasonable amount. '

Mr. James Edward Thompson, GBS, aged 64, is another Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He established his company, Crown Worldwide, in Japan in

1965. He is a member of the American Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong (“ACC”)

and was appointed as the chairman of ACC in 2003. He also serves on the Hong Kong —
United States Business Council, the Hong Kong Japan Business Co-operation ,
Committee, and the Hong Kong Korea Business Roundtable. He was appointed as'an. = .
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 1st September, 2001. After his
re-election at the forthcoming AGM, he will continue to serve on the board of Directors

for a period of approximately 3 years until he becomes due to retire by rotation again in
accordance with the Articles of Association. So far as the Directors are aware, as at 14th

April, 2004, Mr. Thompson did not have any interest (within the meaning of Part XV of

the Securities and Futures Ordinance) in the shares of the Company. He does not have

any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Thompson is currently receiving a
Director’s fee at the rate of HK$35,000 per annum. Such fee was determined by the
Company as a reasonable amount. He has no service contract with the Group and
therefore he receives no emolument from the Group other than the Director’s fee.

Notice of the AGM is set out on pages 8 to 14 of this document. A form of proxy for
use at the AGM is enclosed. Whether or not you intend to be present at the AGM, you
are requested to complete the form of proxy and return it to the registered office of the
Company in accordance with the instructions printed thereon not less than 48 hours
before the time fixed for the holding of the AGM. Completion of the form of proxy and
its return to the Company will not preclude you from attending, and voting at, the AGM
if you so wish.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, a poll may be demanded in relation to any
resolution put to the vote of the AGM before or on the declaration of the result of the
show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll:

(a) by the Chairman of the meeting; or

(b) by at least five members present in person or by proxy for the time being
entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(©) by any member or members present in person or by proxy and representing not
less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having the
right to vote at the meeting; or

(d) by a member or members present in person or by proxy and holding shares in
the company conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an
aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total
sum paid up on all the shares conferring that right.



The Directors believe that the general mandates and the proposed amendments to the
Articles of Association are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Accordingly, the Directors recommend you to vote in favour of all the relevant
resolutions to be proposed at the AGM.

Yours faithfully,
Peter K. C. Woo
Chairman

The Wharf (Holdings) Limited



APPENDIX
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

The following is the Explanatory Statement required to be sent to shareholders under
the Listing Rules in connection with the proposed general mandate for repurchase of shares
and also constitutes the Memorandum required under section 49BA of the Companies
Ordinance. References in this Statement to “Share(s)” mean ordinary share(s) of HKSl 00 e
each in the capital of the Company: e

(i) It is proposed that the general repurchase mandate wﬂl authorise the repurchase by the RIS
Company of up to 10 per cent. of the Shares in issue at the date of passing the:
resolution to approve the general repurchase mandate. As at 14th April, 2004, being the
latest practicable date for determining such figure, the number of Shares in issue was
2,447,476,629 Shares. On the basis of such figure (and assuming no further Shares will
be issued or repurchased after 14th April, 2004 and up to the date of passing such
resolution), exercise in full of the general repurchase mandate would result in the
repurchase by the Company of up to 244,747,662 Shares.

(i1) The Directors believe that the general authority from shareholders to enable repurchase
of Shares is in the interests of the Company and its shareholders. Repurchases may,
depending on the circumstances, result in an increase in net assets and/or earnings per
Share. The Directors are seeking the grant of a general mandate to repurchase Shares to
give the Company the flexibility to do so if and when appropriate. The number(s) of
Shares to be repurchased on any occasion and the price and other terms upon which the
same are repurchased will be decided by the Directors at the relevant time having regard
to the circumstances then pertaining.

(iti) The funds required for any repurchase would be derived from the distributable profits
of the Company legally available for such purpose in accordance with the Company’s
constitutive documents and the laws of Hong Kong,

(iv) There could be an adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the
Company (as compared with the position disclosed in its most recent audited accounts
for the year ended 31st December, 2003 being forwarded to all shareholders together
with this circular letter) in the event that the general repurchase mandate were exercised
in full at any time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the Directors do
not propose to exercise the general repurchase mandate to such extent as would, in the
circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working capital of the Company or
the gearing level which in the opinion of the Directors is from time to time appropriate
for the Company.

(v) There are no Directors or (to the best of the knowledge of the Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries) any associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Directors
of the Company who have a present intention, in the event that the general repurchase
mandate is granted by shareholders, to sell Shares to the Company.



(vi)

(vii)

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise the power of the
Company to make purchases pursuant to the general repurchase mandate in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the laws of Hong Kong.

The Directors are not aware of any consequences which would arise under the Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeover Code™) as a consequence of any
purchases pursuant to the general repurchase mandate. However, if as a result of a
repurchase of Shares a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the
Company increases, such increase would be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of
the Takeover Code. Accordingly, a shareholder or group of shareholders acting in
concert could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to
make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeover Code.

(viii) No purchase has been made by the Company of Shares in the six months prior to the

(ix)

ey

latest practicable date before the printing of this document.

No connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company have notified
the Company of a present intention to sell Shares to the Company and no such persons
have undertaken not to sell Shares to the Company in the event that the general
repurchase mandate is granted by shareholders.

The highest and lowest prices at which Shares were traded on the Stock Exchange in -

each of the previous twelve months are as follows:

Highest (HKS) Lowes't (HKS)

April 2003 14.60 12.40
May 2003 13.95 14.70
June 2003 16.15 14.50
July 2003 16.00 14.90
August 2003 18.35 15.20
September 2003 20.85 18.10
October 2003 22.10 19.10
November 2003 20.60 18.10
December 2003 22.80 19.50
January 2004 26.80 21.45
February 2004 ' 25.60 23.15
March 2004 24.80 21.40
From 1st April, 2004 to 14th April, 2004,

being the latest practicable date 24.85 23.05
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THE WHARF (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of The
Wharf (Holdings) Limited will be held in the Centenary Room, Ground Floor, The Marco
Polo Hongkong Hotel, 3 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, on Tuesday, 18th May, 2004 at

2:30 p.m. for the purpose of transacting the following business: .

As ordinary business:

(D

(2)
€)
(4)

To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and the Reports of the Directors and
Auditors for the year ended 31st December, 2003.

To declare a Final Dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2003.
To re-elect retiring Directors.

To appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

And as special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification
the following resolutions of which resolutions number (5) to (7) will be proposed as ordinary
resolutions and resolution number (8) will be proposed as a special resolution:

)

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period of all the powers of the Company to purchase shares
in the capital of the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
‘approved,;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares which may be purchased on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or any other stock exchange recognised for this
purpose by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under the Code on Share Repurchases pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the
date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;
and ]

(¢c)  for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(aa)  the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;
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(©)

(bb) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; and

(cc)  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general meeting.”

“THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and
deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant
offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such power
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorise the Directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

~ the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or

unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise).by the

Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a),..'"othe'rﬂwfs__'e;- |
than pursuant to (i) any executive or employee share option or incentive scheme, =
or (ii) a Rights Issue, or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing:

for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of
the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
shall not exceed the aggregate of:

(aa) 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of passing this Resolution; plus

(bb)  (if the Directors are so authorised by a separate ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company) the nominal amount of share capital of the
Company repurchased by the Company subsequent to the passing of this
Resolution (up to a maximum equivalent to 10 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date
of passing this Resolution),

and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:

(aa)  the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

The Wharf (Holdings) Limited
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(&)

(bb) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is reqmred by law to be held; and g

(cc)  the revocation or variation of the approval given under this Resolution by
 ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares, or an offer of warrants, options or other
securities giving rights to subscribe for shares, open for a period fixed by the

Company or by the Directors of the Company to holders of shares of the
Company or any class thereof on the register on a fixed record date in proportion: -

to their then holdings of such shares or class thereof (subject to such exclusion or:
other arrangements as the Directors of the Company may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong
Kong).”

“THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to exercise the
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with any additional shares of the
Company pursuant to ordinary resolution (6) set out in the notice convening this
meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing
the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company repurchased by the
Company under the authority granted pursuant to ordinary resolution (5) set out in the
notice convening this meeting, provided that such extended amount shall not exceed 10
per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
at the date of passing this Resolution.”

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
“THAT the Articles of Association of the Company be hereby amended as follows:-

(a) by adding the following new definition immediately after the definition of
“share” in Article 2:

““associate” shall have the meaning attributed to it in the Listing Rules;’;
(b) by adding immediately after Article 84 the following new Article:
‘84A.  Where any member is, under the Listing Rules, required to
abstain from voting on any particular resolution or restricted to voting only for or

only against any particular resolution, any votes cast by or on behalf of such
member in contravention of such requirement or restriction shall not be counted.’;
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(c)

by deleting sub-paragraphs (B)(i) and (ii) of Article 102 in their entireties and
substituting therefor the following new sub-paragraphs:

‘(B) () Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, no Director
or intended Director or his associate(s) shall be disqualified by the office of such
Director from contracting with the Company either as vendor, purchaser or
otherwise nor shall any such contract or any contract or arrangement entered into

by or on behalf of the Company with any person, company or partnership of or in

which any Director or his-associate(s) shall be a member or othermse mterested ':_ N R

be capable on that account of being avoided, nor shall any Director so contractin;
or whose associate(s) so contracting or himself or his associate(s): bemg
member or so interested be liable to account to the Company for any:profi

realised by any such contract or arrangement by reason only of such. Dlrectorn;"f;

holding that office or the fiduciary relationship thereby established, provided that o
such Director shall, if his interest or that of his associate(s) in the contract or

arrangement or proposed contract or arrangement is material, disclose the nature
of such interest in any contract or arrangement in which he or his associate(s)
is/are interested at the meeting of the Board at which the question of entering into
the contract or arrangement is first taken into consideration, if he knows his
interest or that of his associate(s) then exists, or in any other case at the first
meeting of the Board after he knows that he or his associate(s) is/are or has/have
become so interested.

(i) A Director shall not vote on any board resolution
approving any contract or arrangement or proposed contract or arrangement in
which he or any of his associates is materially interested, and if he shall do so his
vote shall not be counted, nor shall he be counted in the quorum present at the
meeting of the Board at which the question of entering into the contract or
arrangement or proposed contract or arrangement is taken into consideration, but
neither of these prohibitions shall apply to:

(a) any contract or arrangement or proposed contract or
arrangement for giving any Director or his associate(s) any
security or indemnity in respect of money lent by him or any of
them or obligations incurred or undertaken by him or any of
them at the request of or for the benefit of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and/or

(b) any contract or arrangement or proposed contract or
arrangement for the giving by the Company of any security or
indemnity to a third party in respect of a debt or obligation of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries for which the Director or
his associate(s) has/have himself/themselves assumed
responsibility in whole or in part whether alone or jointly under
a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of security; and/or

-11-
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(d)

(e)

®

any contract or arrangement or proposed contract or
arrangement concerning an offer of shares or debentures or
other securities of or by the Company or any other company
which the Company may promote or be interested in for
subscription or purchase which the Director or his associate(s)
is/are or is/are to be interested as a participant in the
underwriting or sub-underwriting of the offer; and/or

any contract or arrangement or proposed contract . or .. .-
arrangement concerning any other company in which thef
Director or his associate(s) is/are interested only, - whether:-'_f
directly or indirectly, as an officer or executive or shareholder . =

or in which the Director or his associate(s) is/are beneficially
interested in shares of that company, provided that the Director
and any of his associates are not in aggregate beneficially
interested in five per cent. or more of the issued shares of any
class of such company (or of any third company through which
his interest or that of his associate(s) is derived) or of the voting
rights; and/or

any contract or arrangement or proposed contract or
arrangement concerning the benefit of employees of the
Company or its subsidiaries including:

(aa) the adoption, modification or operation of any
employees’ share scheme or any share incentive or share
option scheme under which the Director or his
associates may benefit; or

(bb) the adoption, modification or operation of a pension
fund or retirement, death or disability benefits scheme
which relates both to Directors, his associates and
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
does not provide in respect of any Director, or his
associate(s), as such any privilege or advantage not
generally accorded to the class of persons to which such
scheme or fund relates; and/or

any contract or arrangement or proposed contract or
arrangement in which the Director or his associate(s) is/are
interested in the same manner as other holders of shares or
debentures or other securities of the Company by virtue only of
his/their interest in shares or debentures or other securities of
the Company.’;
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(d) by deleting Article 106 in its entirety (except the margin note thereof) and
substituting therefor the following new Article:

‘106. No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting unless notice in writing signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person for election
as a Director and a notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed- of his )
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Registered Office 'and: .=\ -
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such notices may:.
be given, shall be at least seven days and that the period for lodgement of such' . "/
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the-nétice of = +* ..
the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.’; and

- (e) by deleting the word “special” in the first line in Article 107 and substituting
therefor the word “ordinary” and by deleting the margin note of Article 107 in its
entirety and substituting therefore a new margin note “Power to remove Director
by ordinary resolution.””

By Order of the Board
Wilson W. S. Chan

Secretary
Hong Kong, 22nd April, 2004

Registered Office: .

16th Floor, Ocean Centre,
Harbour City, Canton Road,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong -

Notes:

(a) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above notice is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, in the event of a poll, to vote in
his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. In order to be valid, the
form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under
which it is signed (or a notarially certified copy of that power of attorney or authority)
must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at 16th Floor, Ocean Centre,
Harbour City, Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for the holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting.

13-
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(®)

(c)

@

With reference to the Ordinary Resolution proposed under item (6) above, the

Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans to issue any new shares of .

the Company pursuant to the mandate to be given thereunder, other than under the
executive share incentive scheme from time to time adopted by the Company.

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 11th May, 2004 to Tuesday,
18th May, 2004, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the

Company can be registered. In order to qualify for the abovementioned Final

Dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, miist be ROLRIPIE

lodged with the Company’s Registrars, Tengis Limited, at Ground Floor, Bank of -

East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later:=

than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 10th May, 2004.

Arrangements will be made for the voting of each of the resolutions being put to the |

meeting to be dealt with by means of poll vote.
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-~ The annual Apple Countdown
P4 at Times Square on New Year's
--Eve has become a Hong Kong
‘Jandmark event since its debut
" in 1993. On December 31,
2003, some 60,000 peopie

" gathered at the complex to
celebrate the arrival of 2004,



Harbour City

}
1
)
1:]

!.‘
s
L

Harbour City, the Group’s flagship property at
the tip of the Tsimshatsui peninsula in Kowloon,
generates some 60 per cent of the Group's
gross rental income from its 8.3 million square
feet of prime commercial space comprising
offices, service apartments, hotels, retail shops
and 2,000 carparks. With its 700 shops and
restaurants, Harbour City is home of Hong
Kong’s largest shopping, dining and
entertainment centre,

Times Square

A landmark property in Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong's busiest shopping district,
Times Square comprises one million
square feet of Grade A office space, a
highly popular retail podium of similar

size and over 700 carpark spaces. It has
been named one of Hong Kong’s

top ten tourist attractions by the

Hong Kong Tourism Board.
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-CABLE

i-CABLE is Hong Kong's’
leading integrated
communications company
that owns and operates one
of the territory’s two near
universal telecommunications
 networks. It provides Pay TV
. v_'ar_wd.broadband Internet
 access service; and creates its
own multimedia contents.

Wharf T&T

Wharf T&T, licensed in 1995,
is one of the fastest growing
fixed-line operators with
significant investment in its
own telecommunications
network infrastructure in
Hong Kong. Since its debut
when the Hong Kong fixed
telecommunications market
was liberalised, Wharf T&T
has continually sought to
upgrade its services and
deliver competitive products
at competitive prices to local
businesses and consumers.

Modern Terminals

Modern Terminals is a leading
operator of world-class container
terminal services in the South
China region. Established in
1969, the company has operated
Hong Kong's first purpose-built
container terminal since
September 1972. Wharf owns
55.3 per cent of Modern
Terminals Limited.
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.Ms Doreen Y F Lee
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An unprecedented combination of events in 2003 - including terrorism overseas,
SARS, the Central Government’s policy initiatives in favour of Hong Kong, and the
economic upmrn ~ has produced a profound change in local sentiment. The Group
performed well during the year.

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
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Group profit amounted to HK$3,043 million, representing a growth of 35
per cent when compared to HK$2,259 million achieved the year before. Earnings
per share were HK$1.24.

Before the sudden emergence of SARS, the iocal economy had been in dreadful
shape. But after the disease abated and the Central Government stepped in with
a variety of measures, a bottom was quickly established. A V-shaped recovery
followed and the adjustment process lasted only a few months — valuations have
returned to the pre-SARS level or climbed even higher, while market sentiment has
improved tremendously.

The roller-coaster ride experienced during the year 2003 demonstrated

the wisdom of the Group’s decision at the beginning of the last financial year
to make debt reduction its top priority. All business units remained financially
sound and solid despite the extremely severe operating environment. Your
Directors recommend an unchanged final dividend of 28 cents per share which
is to be approved at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
On behalf of our shareholders and my fellow board members, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to all Group management and staff, especially those who, while shouldering extra duties and enduring
many hardships during the SARS outbreak, yet remained fully committed to their work.

The performance of Team Wharf Estates was particularly impressive. Their timely and decisive actions in the
R fa_ce of the SARS epidemic fully demonstrated the guality of our crisis management. As a leading
~ investment house put it in one of its research reports, “...not only has this concerted effort strengthened the
landlord-tenant relationship, but the impressive performance in attracting customer traffic also increased

4

retailers’ confidence in the appeal of Wharf's retail malls...”.

| feel this is an accurate assessment.
Other business units also recorded steady progress:
* Both i-CABLE and Wharf T&T reporied new highs in numbers of subscribers and installed fixed lines.

-+ Modern Terminals handled four million TEUs in Kwai Chung, a new high for a company with more
than 30 years of history in Hong Kong.




GOING FORWARD

Now that the Central Government has begun to implement measures targeting at the three pillars of
..the Hong Kong economy - Trade and Commerce (CEPA), Tourism (relaxation of travel restrictions on
.individuals) and Finance (allowing banks in Hong Kong to conduct RMB business) — the outlook for

.- business has turned positive. Growth in the Pearl River Delta has been swift. Hong Kong is the region’s

- lead business platform with established and growing critical mass. We are pleased to see solid signs of
"_do_mestic recovery for the first time since the Asian Financial Crisis hit us in 1997. Many predict that
deflation will soon be a thing of the past. Moreover, China's GDP growth, now running at around seven
per cent annually, can be expected to create a favourable macroenvironment for business growth.

Peter K C Woo
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 16, 2004

The Wharf (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2003



Financial Highlights

2003 2002
RESULTS _ HKS Million HK$ Million
: {restated)
Turnover 11,253 11,333
Operating profit before depreciation, amortisation, interest and tax 6,342 6,549
Profit attributable to sharehoiders 3,043 2,259
_Earnings per share HK$1.24 HK$0.92
- Dividend per share 60.75 cents 56.00 cents
" FINANCIAL POSITION
’ Tovt'al‘, assets 81,162 81,122
Net debts 17,006 20,454
Shareholders’ equity ' : 51,628 47,734
Net assets per share ’ ’ HK$21.09 HK$19.50
Net debts to total assets (excluding cash) v _ 21.4% 25.9% .
Net debts to shareholders’ equity o B 32.9% 42 .9%
GROUP PROFIT TO SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
(HK$ Million) (HKS Million)
4,000 70,000 .
3,500 3'51 60.000 544120 7020 o4 gas
3,000 = :,: 47,734* 51.628
B 2404 2,519 50.000 i e 3
2,500 R oy . =
. 40,000 =
2,000 g

30,000

1,500

1,000 20,000
500 10,000
o} - 0
93 00 32 02 03 99 00 o1 02 03
* Restated * Restated I
* 1999 figure included deemed profit on disposal of 20.6% i-CABLE shares

** 2003 figure included deemed profit arising from the distribution of 12.1%
i-CABLE shares as part of the interim dividend for the year

" DIVIDEND PER SHARE NET ASSETS VALUE PER SHARE
G B (HKS)
T 30
23.69*
08 Bonae T ni 21.09
20 ; 500 -
0.6
15
0.4
0
0.2 5
0 x 0 :
99 00 01 02 03 99 00 01 02 03
* 2003 figure included distribution in specie in the form of i-CABLE shares * Restated

equivalent to HK$0.2075 per share
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David Lawrence,
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" Ricky Wong,
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K C Leung,

Erik Christensen,
Michael Kalyk,
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Lawrence Lee,
Micky Leung

Wharf Estates Limited
» Harbour City
¢ Times Square

Plaza Hollywood

Wharf Estates
Development Limited

Wharf Communications Limited
e -CABLE
o Wharf T&T
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Wharf China Limited
* Whart Estates China

¢ Marco Polo Hotels

¢ Modern Terminals
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BUSINESS REVIEW

g

BALANCE SHEET (EXTRACT)

as et December 31, 20032

Properties
Net current liabilities

Other non-current fiabilities’

Net business assets (before debts)

GROSS REVENUE

2003 -
Oftice - Gateway | & i 643
Office — Other Towers 338
Retail 1,032
‘Service Apartment 186
Hotel - - 533
SRR 2,732

OPERATING PROFIT

COffice =~ Gatewayl & Il

"Office - Other Towers 264
Retail 768
Service Apartment : 110
Hotel 105

1,803

HARBOUR CITY: RETAIL TENANT MIiX
(BY AREA AND RENTAL)
as at Decembe 31,2003

Fashion : 26.6

Restaurant, Fast Food, F&B 23.6
Department Stores, Confectionery Products 13.9
Jeweliery, Beauty and Accessories 6.2
Children's Wear & Related Trades, Toys 8.9
Leather Goods - Shoes, Bags, Luggage etc 8.2
Others ’ 12.6

100.0

... GROSS:REVENUE
CHRSM L T HKEM

50,000

:% by'Rental ]

PROPERTY VALUE

2002

1,

2

1

34,791

(1,350)
(214)

33,227

637
382
017
226
616
878

307
798
150
223
2,001

41.8
9.7
10.0
9.4
4.1
15.8
9.2
00.0

40,000 ’\’

30,000 34,791
20,000
10,000
0

99 00 01 02 03

Harbour City

RETAIL

Harbour City retail properties registered
growth in average rental during the year
under review in spite of a difficult
environment. Policies adopted by the
Central Government in the second half of
last year, including the relaxation of travel
restrictions on mainland residents and the
CEPA arrangements, have brought a whole
new outlook to the Hong Kong retail
market. Tourists from mainland China now
account for more than half of Hong Kong's
visitor arrivals, and the persistently strong

growth in this segment last year made up for
the loss of visitors caused largely by SARS.

Thanks to the presence of top designer labels at
Harbour City, the Canton Road area is fast becoming
- the most prominent high-end fashion cluster in the
. Asia Pacific region.




PROPERTY m WHARF ESTATES LIMITED

For the year 2003, Harbour City’s retail occupancy, which
showed remarkable resilience even during the SARS outbreak,
was maintained at around 96 per cent. Special measures
designed to raise Harbour City’s already outstanding
hygiene standards to an even higher level received
tremendous support from shoppers, tenants and the public.
Instead of reacting passively by giving away concessions or
rental reductions to tenants, Group management
responded proactively by investing promptly in marketing
and promotion. These actions, when combined with the
Government-led initiatives introduced later on, meant that
business disruptions caused by SARS were relatively short-
lived, as evidenced by the more than 20 per cent year-on-year
growth in both foot traffic and average sales per square foot
of floor area recorded during the second half. The increase
of well above 50 per cent in vehicle traffic in Harbour : ihe piano solo é’érformances dL.Jring A
City's car parks also added to shopper traffic. Most new . weekends and hofidays are well received by
leases and renewals achieved favourable increments. . Shoppers o :

| Business disruptions caused by SARS were relatively short-lived. Harbour City's foot traffic grew
20% year-on-year during the second half-of 2003.

T AT R mrf (Al imnrmet Limmitrmd Ammitnl Damare SANTD



BUSINESS REVIEW '

B The relocation-of the Lane Crawford departmewt store has g:ven the '

south end of Canton Road a. refreshmg new Iook

Canton Road underwent many exciting changes in the year
under review. A number of upmarket fashion and related
retailers — including YSL, TOD, a.testoni, Vivienne
Westwood and Marella - set up shop at Harbour City
along Canton Road, foliowing in the footsteps of top
designer labels such as Louis Vuitton, Salvatore Ferragamo,
Gucd, Prada, D&G, Versus, Joyce, and Hugo Boss. Thanks
to their presence and the grand openings of prestigious
brands like Christian Dior, Celine, Fendi, Cartier, Escada
and Ermenegildo Zegna along Peking Road, the Canton
Road area is fast becoming the most prominent high-end
fashion cluster in the Asia Pacific region, comparable to the
Champs Elysées in Paris. Moreover, the recent relocation of
the Lane Crawford department store has given the south
end of Canton Road a refreshing new iook.

Apart from the various upmarket fashion and related tenants,
crowd-pleasers like Crystal Jade La Mian Xiao Long Bao and
Azzbu Sabo have opened new outlets at Harbour City,
enhancing the mall’s already wide selection of F&B choices.
Leveraging on the huge success of LCX and Faces, more
powerhouse concepts will be introduced in the near future,
including KidX, SportX and another sizeable AV products and
electronic goods power centre similar to the Electronics World
on the 7th and 8th floors of Times Square.




PROPERTY m WHARF ESTATES LIMITED

" OFFICES
Hambéred by the negative reversionary cycle, Harbour City offices generated
less total revenue in 2003 than the year before. Even though Harbour City's
office occupancy climbed steadily last year ~ from January's average of 84 per
cent to 88 per cent at year end - the gains were not large enough to offset the
magnitude of the negative rental reversion. With a 78 per cent retention rate
for office tenancies that expired in 2003 and new lettings totalling about
480,000 square feet, the net take-up was more than 200,000 square feet during
the year under review.

As the Hong Kong economy showed signs of an upturn in the latter part of last
year, the increase in leasing activities helped to ease the supply issue on the
Island side. While all major districts recorded double-digit declines in rental rates
during 2003, the average at Harbour City fell only by about 11 per cent, at the
low end of market declines. The strong performance of the trade and
commerce sector and the relatively balanced demand-supply situation in
Harbour City and the surrounding area mean that Harbour City Grade A
offices remain in a favourable position.

2]
®.

Hong Kong welcomed the Year of the Monkey in lanuary 2004 with a dazzling night parade as thousands of spectators
lined the route along Canton Road.




BUSINESS REVIEW

Gateway Apartments draws the majority of
its tenants from among muitinational
corporations due to its top-flight reputation

and superb location.

The facelift of The Mar‘;o Polo Hongkong

‘Hotel’s facade was com

leted last year.

SERVICE APARTMENT

The operating environment for service apartments continued to be difficult in
2003. New supply and competition from the hotel industry remained a drag on
the performance of the service apartment operations. What's more, the revival
of the property market and low interest rates have lured a certain portion of this
segment’s target customers out of rentals and intc home ownership.

Gateway Apartments’ average occupancy stood at 70 per cent. Because of its
top-flight reputation and superb location, Gateway Apartments draws the
majority of its tenants from among multinational corporations. About 65 per
cent of outstanding tenancies have durations of 12 months and above, while
another 15 per cent have durations of six to 12 months; the remaining 20 per
cent are committed for periods of less than six months.

HOTELS

Due to the SARS outbreak, the consolidated occupancy for the three Marco Polo
Hotels at Harbour City declined to about 67 per cent in the year 2003, versus 86
per cent the year before. The average occupancy rates for The Marco Polo
Hongkong Hotel, The Marco Polo Gateway and The Marco Polo Prince were 65,
68 and 68 per cent respectively.

According to statistics released by the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the number of
visitor arrivals in 2003 totalled 15.54 million, six per cent lower than 16.57
million a year ago. Considering the impact of SARS, such a single digit decline
was better than general expectations. A closer examination of the figures shows
that only the China tourist segment recorded a significant increase, whereas
other major segments, including the US, Europe and Japan, experienced
negative growth of 10 to 30 per cent. As a result of this new visitor
composition, Marco Polo’s average room rate in 2003 still lagged despite the full
recovery of occupancy in the second half.
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. Gross

Average’ ‘

" . Area Revenue - 'Occupancy  Valuation.

Colsafth o (HKSM) o (%) T (HKSM)
Of;fiée
Gateway 2,698,000 643 81.3% 11,056
Other Towers 1,747,000 338 89.7% 4,700
Retail 1,803,000 1,032 95.8% 11,319
Service Apartment 670,000 186 69.6% 4,307
Hotel 1,248,000 533 66.8% 3,409

The Canton Road countdown party on Christmas’s Eve was extremely popular.

'Yearend |

AnchorTenants

AlA, CMG Asia, DuPont, Ernst & Young,
GlaxoSmithKline, Hallmark, JAL, Karstadt Quelle,
MGA Entertainment, Nike, Prudential, Sears

APL, Hasbro, Hitachi, HKSAR Government, Mattel,
May Department Store, Metro-Group, Zurich insurance

City’Super, Cova, Golden Gateway Multiplex, Gucdi, I.T,
Joyce, Lane Crawford, Louis Vuitton, Marks & Spencer,
Polo Ralph Lauren, Prada, Toys“R“Us, Ye Shanghai

The \Wharf fHAaldineacst limited Arnisl Demart 2002
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BUSINESS REVIEW

BALANCE SHEET (EXTRACT)

as at December 31, 2003

Propertis . 12,323

Net current liabilities (234)
Other non-current liabilities (234)
Net business assets (before debts) 11,855
GROSS REVENUE T - S
s003 2002 Imes >guare
Office 256 318
Retail 585 577
841 895 RETAIL

Retail occupancy stood at 98 per cent in
2003. The Times Square shopping complex
increased its total revenue thanks to higher
rental and occupancy rates. As Causeway

. /OPERATING PROFIT

206 75

497 - 487 Bay’s landmark, Times Square demonstrated
703 762 exceptional resilience during the SARS period.
R TR T PO Due to management'’s timely and decisive
TIMES SQUARE: RETAIL TENANT MIX actions immediately after the start of the
(BY AREA AND RENTAL) outbreak, foot traffic in absolute terms
as at December 31, 2003 ) e
R I by Area%-by Rental bourniced back to pre-SARS levels within
Restaurant, Fast Food, F&B 26.9 16.4 weeks; indeed, it was about 10 per cent
Department Stores, 24.8 17.6
Confectionery Products
Fashion 15.0 27.0
Consumer Electronic & Entertainment 13.8 10.0
Jewellery, Beauty and Accessories 7.0 15.5
Sports wear 4.0 4.5
Others 8.4 5.0
100.0 100.0
GROSS REVENUE PROPERTY VALUE
HKSM HKSM
1,200 . . 18,000
.‘1‘00__0 . 15,000
12,000 N
12323
9,000
6,000
3,000
0 0

" Times Square enjoys heavy daily foot traffic.

g9 00 OV 02 03 99 00 01 02 03




PROPERTY | m WHARF ESTATES LIMITED

higher than the foot traffic number recorded at the same time the year before,
As in the case of Harbour City, numerous innovative marketing programmes

and thorough hygiene measures proved extremely successful, and no rental
reductions had to be given to tenants due to SARS.

£ R

: The operating environment of the retail sector in Hong Kong turned around
drastically in the second half of last year thanks to buoyancy of tourism and
improving economic indicators. Retail space at prime locations has been subject S ;

. . . . Electronics Werld on the 7th and 8th floors
to very keen demand in the past six to nine months, as reflected by surging : of Times Square has become a must-go

rental rates and a much more active purchase and sale market. Times Square - destination for tourists searching for AV and
. electronics goods. R

also recorded favourable gains in rental reversions in 2003.

Times Square’s retail occupancy rate stood firm at 98% in 2003.




BUSINESS REVIEW

Al expiring tenancies were successfully renewed or re-merchandised with more
appealing retailers. The new restaurants Crystal Jade La Mian Xiao Long Bao,
Shark's Fin City, Japanese Dining SUN, Modern China Restaurant and California
Pizza Kitchen have proved very popular with shoppers. Since their launch, al!
five have been drawing impressive traffic into the shopping complex. Plans are
afoot to bring in more exciting F&B outlets.

The operating environment of the focal
retail sector improved dramatically in the
g . second half of 2003.

The highiy popular Food Forum offers a great variety of spediafty restaurants. )

: PORTEOLIO INFORMATION

Gross AVeflagé';' Yearend.:
Area - Revenue  Occupancy . - Valuation - o B
(safty  (HKSM)- - . (%) .. (HKSM)  Anchor Tenants

Office 1,033,000 256 83% 4799  AT&T, Boston Consulting, Coca-Cola, Disney, Lucent,
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC, NCR, Shell

Retail 936,000 © 585 98% 7,524 Bally, Broadway, City'Super, Fortresé, it :
. Lane Crawford, Mango, Marks & Spencer, Max Mara,
UA Cinema, Versace
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OFFICES

After standing at 92 per cent for two consecutive years,
Times Square’s office occupancy rate declined to 83 per
cent in 2003, as the result of a single tenant’s decision to
relocate to Tai Po. No other significant departures are
expected in the near to medium term.

In spite of keen competition and the rising supply of Grade A
office space, Times Square remained the preferred spot for
multinationals engaged in the services or consumer goods
markets. The retention rate for office tenancies expiring in
2003 was more than 70 per cent. High-profile tenants
including Giorgio Armani, The Royal Bank of Scotland,
L'Oreal and Charles Schwab renewed their leasing
agreements. Meanwhile, the arrival of other household
names such as Honda Motors and ABN AMRO Bank brought
new lettings to 113,000 square feet.

':." Times Sguare offices remain the preferred spot for multinationals '
“ engaged in the services or consumer goods markets, .

Plaza Hollywood

This shopping mall located in the Diamond Hill area
maintained an average occupancy rate of 87 per cent
during the year under review. Similar to the Group’s other
major retail properties, Plaza Hollywood recorded double-
digit growth in both shopper and vehicle traffic.

' Plaza Hotlywood recorded double-digit growth in both shopper and
- vehicle traffic during the year.

The Wharf (Hoidings) Limited Annuat Report 2003



. BUSINESS REVIEW

BALANCE SHEET (EXTRACT)

s at December 31, 2003

Properties

Interest in Sorrento and Bellagio
Property inventory and development

Second mortgage debtors
Net current liabilities
Net non-current liabilities

5,379
1,815%

1,357

58
(131)
(71)

Net business assets (before debts) 8,407

* Include 1/3 interest in Bellagio and 40% interest in Sorrento, of which 20% held
through Harbour Centre Devefopment Limited, 3 67%-owned subsidiary.

Cumulative sales of Sorrento Phase If reached 728 units at the end
of 2003. - ) e .

- PROPERTY LIST

World Trade Square . Office/Retail 395,000

” Project Nature GFA (sq ft) - % -Ownéd .

100%

Whart Estates
Development
Limited

Since the second half of last year, the local
property market has again become active.
Purchase and sale transactions in both
primary and secondary markets showed
remarkable increases, and the overall rental
market began to stabilise in the final quarter
of 2003.

SORRENTO

Sorrento, an MTRC joint-venture project
above Kowloon Station, is equally owned by
a five-member consortium comprising Wharf,
Harbour Centre Development, Wheelock,
New Asia Realty and Realty Development
Corporation {now & wholly-owned subsidiary
of New Asia Realty). For Phase |, launched in

For Lease

untain Court - _ Residential 49,900 100% For Lease
Chelsea Court. Residential 43,000 100% For Lease
“Nowi 'Ela_‘n'ta‘_tiqn"Road ‘ Residential 97,000 100% For Lease
Various urits of Strawberry Hill Residential 37,000 100% For Lease

“ 77 Peak Road - - Residential 32,000 100% For Lease
Sorrento Phase | & i . Residential 2,531,000* 33%* For Sale
Bellagio Phase /1 Residential  1,525,300* 33% For Sale
Bellagio Phase AV Residential 1,571,400 33% Under Construction
Victoria Road S Residential 48,800 100% Under Construction
Gdugh Hili-Path Residential 24,700 100% Under Construction
Cable TV Tower South Retzil/Hotel 596,000 100% Under Design Planning

- Kowloon Godown Residential/Hotel 1,078,000 100% Under Planning Submission
Yau Tong Godown . Retail/Residential - 244,000 100% Under Planning Submission
Yau Tong JV Project ' Retail/Residential 9,041,000 15.6% Under Planning Submission

# Substantiafly sold
* Effective ownership
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BELLAGIO

“~ western shore of the New

PROPERTY i W WHARF ESTATES DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

November 2001, cumulative sales and proceeds for Towers 3, 5 and 6 reached 1,257 units (98 % sold) and HK$5.9 billion
as at the end of 2003. And at Phase I, consisting of Towers 1 and 2, which was launched in November 2002, cumulative
sales and proceeds reached 728 units (85% sold) and HK$4.7 billion as at the end of the year under review.

Bellagio, in Sham Tseng on the

Territories overlooking the Tsing
Ma Bridge, is a joint-venture
development equally owned by
Wharf, Wheelock and New Asia
Realty. Phases ! and Il were
launched in September 2002 for
pre-sales. At the end of December
2003, cumulative sales had
reached 1,585 units (93% sold),
realising proceeds of about
HK$3.7 billion.

. Pre-sale of Bellagio Phases il and |V is planned for ﬁl\e'secpnd half of 2004.‘ N

Construction work on Phases lll and IV, covering the remaining 1,650 units, commenced in March 2003. While completion
of these two phases is expected towards the end of 2005, the target for the launch of pre-sales is the second half of 2004.

WORLD TRADE SQUARE

Office and retail occupancy of World Trade Square stood at 75 and 63 per cent respectively at the end of December 2003.
Due to the relatively large amount of supply available and competition from nearby industrial/office buildings, rental rates

experienced double-digit declines on average last year.

WHARF PEAK PORTFOLIO

Both Mountain Court and Chelsea Court, with 16 and 20 units

‘ ~respectively, were completed in mid-2001. As at the end of 2003,

13 units, or more than 80 per cent of Mountain Court had been
leased out; and 11 units, or 55 per cent of Chelsea Court had
been leased. No. 1 Plantation Road, with 48 luxury apartments,
was completed in June 2002, Leasing started in July 2002, and 30
takeups had been recorded at the end of 2003. The
redevelopment of 3-S5 Gough Hill Path into five houses has begun
and is progressing according to schedule.

By the end of 2003, 30 luxury apartments had been leased
at No. 1 Plantation Road.

The Wharf (Haldings) Limited Annpual Report 2003 2t



e

BUSINESS REVIEW

Wharf Communications Limited

i-CABLE Communications Limited

BALANCE SHEET

As Hong Kong emerged from the economic
as at December 31, 2003

doldrums, i-CABLE’s core businesses, which

Non-current assets 2,435 had been affected by adverse conditions
Net current liabilities (637) and keen competition, gained growth
mz:’:;g;m liabilities % momentum. Subscriptions to i-CABLE's Pay
, TV and Broadband access services both saw
Capital and reserves ] ) .
Share capital 2,019 healthy gains during the year under review,
Reserves (334) despite a lack of “megaprogramme”
1,685

'EBITDA AND CAPEX BROADBAND

HISTORICAL TREND TOTAL TURNOVER PAY TV SUBSCRIBERS SUBSCRIBERS

‘H’K'SM___;: et HKSM In thousands In thausands

°°0 - 2,400 800 300

2143

EBITDA " 2,000

800 640 240
1,600

600 480 180
1,200

Capital

400 Expenditure 320 120
800

200 400 160 60

0 o [ o}

93 00 01 02 03 94985969798990001 0203 94959697989300010203 0500 100 0607 1207 0602 1200 0503 1203
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{

attractions such as the FIFA World Cup, and in the face of competition from
new entrants and aggressive pricing.

PAY TV

With initiatives aimed to enhance i-CABLE's Pay-TV programming service —
including the launch of a 24-hour Entertainment News Channel, the acquisition
of important sports carriage rights and the addition of satellite channels - the
Pay-TV division continued to grow, notwithstanding the presence of new
competition.

Total subscribers increased by eight per cent to 656,000 at end of 2003, and
the average churn rate fell to 1.3 per cent, compared with 1.6 per cent in 2002.
These factors, combined with lower programming costs and stronger airtime
sales in the second half of 2003, allowed the division to report higher turnover . CABLE TV celebrated its 10th anniversary
and operating profit. 75t October.

Apart from growing the subscriber base, i-CABLE continued to expand its programming platform with the.introduction of
more premium channels and packages. Important acquisitions in 2003 included the exclusive rights to the star-studded
Spanish La Liga soccer tournament, UEFA EURO 2004 and FIFA World Cup 2006. Digitisation of i-CABLE’s broadcasting
service progressed at full speed during the year under review. Close to two-thirds of its Pay TV subscribers now receive
their service in digital format; completion of the digital conversion programme is now expected by the third quarter of
2004, a year ahead of schedule.

BROADBAND AND INTERNET SERVICE

The number of Broadband subscribers increased by 14 per cent to 258,000
last year, though erosion of margins persisted due to the maturing of the
market and keen competition. While i-CABLE's share in the residential

~ Broadband market remained more or less the same, in the mid-20 per cent

«. range, ARPU fell to HK$129 from HK$180 the year before as a result of an

. .aggressive pricing strategy designed to maintain subscriber growth
jr__norﬁentum in a keenly contested market. However, with the economic
upturn in the second half, both ARPU and turnover showed signs of recovery
in the latter part of 2003.

Broadband subscribers grew to 258,000 at
the end of 2003.

During the year under review, i-CABLE continued with its efforts to derive
additional revenue from its multimedia service, leveraging on its unique content
production capability. A fee-charging portal, isoccer18.com, was launched in the
summer of 2003, Moreover, i-CABLE's position as a leading multimedia content
‘provider was again validated by the conclusion of a carriage agreement with
Hong Kongs first third-generation mobile service provider.

The Wharf {Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2003
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BUSINESS REVIEW

BALANCE SHEET (EXTRACT)
as at December 31, 2003

Fixed assets 3,157
Net current liabifities (268}
Other non-current liabilities (22)
Net business assets {before debts) 2,867
RESULTS SUMMARY \Wh a rf T&T
2003 2002 :
HKSM HKSM Change %
Turnover - 1,235 AN N
Cost of Sales (472) (388) 22
. Gross Profit 763 729 5 Under the impact of military confiict in the
N (E):I%r)a:ng Expenses (z;g) (gg? 15 ' Middle East and the SARS outbreak in the
- _':HI:TD&A (333) Q77 20 early part of the year, the trend of business
“Operating profit 54* 53 2 closures and downsizing leading to further

R

: Be_fore‘non-recurring fixed assets write off of HK$85 million contraction of business telecommunications

demand continued throughout most of 2003.

FIXED LINE GROWTH ‘TOTAL REVENUE This cautious and difficult operating

In thousands HKSM environment appeared to abate only towards

480 1,400 the very end of the year. Together with

5 . - .
420 1,200 5 escalating competition on the supply side,
0 1,000 2 revenue growth, selling costs and operating -
300 ' | costs came under serious pressure.
800
240 E
. 600 B During 2003, the fixed line installed base
o 00 g grew by about 94,000 or 28 per cent year-on-
200 year to reach 433,000, representing an overall
60

market share of 11 per cent. Of this installed
] ' base, 293,000 lines were for business service
00 o} 02 03 00 01 02 03

B Fired Line Revenue and 140,000 for residential service; our
B int'] Services Revenue

0

market share in these two segments was 17
EBITDA & EBITDA

MARGIN and seven per cent respectively. The revenue
HKSM ratio between fixed line and IDD improved to
500 35% nearly 4:1, reflecting a continuing shift of
305, 31% focus to fixed line service under Wharf T&T's
500 0% business model. Total outgoing IDD volume in
25% 2003 stayed flat at about 378 million minutes,
20% versus 383 million minutes the year before.

15%

During the year under review, an additional
, 189 km of fibre network was built to bring
5% the total to 1,787 km.

10%
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BUSINESS MARKET

As a group, business customers accounted for 76 per cent
of Wharf T&T's total revenue in 2003.

On the wholesale front, Wharf T&T not only remained the

- aomin_ant,player in the non-captive ETS hosting business,

, - servmg about 95 per cent of that market; it also became
N ..j:.'vt‘h'e s'.u‘pplier of choice for international giants such as AT&T,
v BTand NTT Com Asia, reflecting exceptional service quality

and flexible pricing. Wholesale business with international
telecom carriers now makes up about 10 per cent of
Wharf T&T's turnover in monthly fixed line rental.

in the area of high bandwidth fibre service, Wharf T&T
continued 1o successfully penetrate the corporate, 1T, finance
and government market segments. As for the business
Internet access market, the installed base of our broadband
webtone service achieved significant growth last year.

CONSUMER MARKET

As a group, residential customers accounted for 24 per cent
of Wharf T&T’s total revenue in 2003.

With increased network coverage through co-location and
direct access, an expanded sales force and vigorous
promotional activities, growth of the residential sector
accelerated. As the number of residential fixed lines

jumped by a hefty 62 per cent year-on-year, the fixed line
. irevenue generated by the Consumer Market showed an
" even bigger increase of 72 per cent. 1DD margins were
* - protected at the expense of volume; as a result of this
*“Strategy, Wharf T&T's market share in the residential IDD

sector fell to six per cent in 2003.

Wharf T&T's installed base of fixed lines grew to 433,000 lines during
the year. :

FIXED LINE MARKET SHARE

Business Market

»

Total Market

11%

Residential Market

B wharf T&T
=1 Other FTNS
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CBUSINESS REVIEW

Wharf Estates China Limited

BALANCE SHEET (EXTRACT)
as al December 31, 2003

Investment properties
Other properties and fixed assets

Property inventory and development
Net current liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

‘Net business assets (before debts)

Shanghai Wellington Garden
Dalian Times Square
Shanghai Jingan Garden
Shanghai Wheelock Square
Wuhan Times Square
Shanghai Parc Royal

Partly sold ’

»

Overall, the 2003 performance of the Group’s
investment properties in China was affected

,732 by the SARS outbreak.

1,223 '

4,955 . -

1258 With a total of 1.3 million square feet of GFA,

(313) Beijing Capital Times Square is a retail and
% office complex strategically located in the

Xidan area, at the intersection of West

For Lease
Office/Retail/Residential 1,211,000 For Lease

Office/Retail/Residential 1,570,000* Under Construction
Residential 562,000 Under Construction 2006
Retail/Residential 1,793,000 Under Planning 2007
Residential 970,000 Under Planning 2007
Office/Retail 1,489,300 Under Planning 2007
Retail/Residential 2,406,000 Under Planning 2007

Residentiat 802,000 Under Planning 2008




CHINA |

m WHARF CHINA LIMITED

Changan Avenue and Xuanwu Men Nei Avenue. During the year under review,
the complex maintained an average office occupancy rate of 85 per cent. Beneath
the five-level retail podium, the basement floor is directly connected to Xidan MTR
station. Since the entire retail podium was turned into an LCX operation at the
beginning of 2003, retail occupancy last year stood at 100%.

Shanghai Times Square is located in the very heart of Shanghai's Central
Business District along Huai Hai Zhong Road. With over 1.2 million square feet
of GFA, this commercial complex is also conveniently linked to major highways
and MTR stations. Occupancy rates of the retail, office and residential portions
were 77, 95 and 84 per cent respectively.

Chongging Times Square, which has about 1.6 million square feet of GFA, occupies
a primevlocation in the Liberation Statue Square area, between Zou Rong Read and
‘Min Zu Road. It consists of four residential towers built atop the retail/commercial
podium. Phase | units were handed over to individual buyers subsequent to
completion during 2003. Phase Il units were launched in April last year, and 217
units (72%) had already been sold by the end of 2003. Construction of Phase If wil!
be completed by the end of 2004.

The Group's other property projects in China - including Shanghai Wheelock
Square, Shanghai Wellington Garden and Shanghai Parc Royal — are progressing
according to schedule.

Shanghai Times Square is located in the very :
heart of Shanghai’s Central Business District .
- -along Hual Hai' Zhong Road. ’

| Shanghai Wheelock Square, one of the
Group’s commercial property developments,
is slated for completion in 2007.

The Wharf (Moldina<) limited Annual Rapart 2003
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BUSINESS REVIEW

’ ‘hefirst Marco Polo Hotel i Shenzhe
the summer of 2005.7;.-

cheddled tor

Marco Polo Hotel Group

During 2003, the Marco Polo Hotel Group announced the signing of 2
long-term management contract to operate a five-star deluxe hotel in
the Futian Central Business District of Shenzhen, expanding Marco Polo’s
portfolio of China hotels to four.

Developed and owned by China Tobacco Company (Shenzhen), this new
member of the Marco Polo Group is conveniently located in the prime
commercial district of Futian, and affords easy access to the city
government office complex, the new Shenzhen International Convention
and Exhibition Centre and the Shenzhen Rapid Transit System.

Scheduled to open in the summer of 2005, this 41-storey building will
provide 375 guestrooms and suites, including Marco Polo’s well-known
signature Continental Club. The conference and banquet facilities,
which are designed to accommodate up to 1,200 guests, will be an ideal
venue for meetings, seminars and social events. The recreation centre
will feature a luxurious spa, a fitness club, a swimming pool, tennis
courts and other sports facilities.

Today, the Marco Polo Hotel Group manages nine hotels in the Asia
Pacific region, including those under construction. Seven of theseé are
located in Hong Kong and China.
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CHINA m WHARF CHINA LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET (EXTRACT)
as at December 31, 2003
Fu&e assets 4,961
Interest in associates 233
Net current liabilities (437)
Other non-current liabilities (352)
Net business assets (before debts} 4,405
Note: The Group’s investment ¢ost in 55.34% of Modern Terminals is HK$3,705 million. M O d e r n Te r . i n a I S
The number of container boxes handled by
Hong Kong's Kwai Chung terminal grew by
1.2 per cent in 2003, compared with 5.2 per
cent growth the year before. Volume
growth for the whole Southern China region
also declined to 35 per cent from 50 per
cent in 2002. As at the end of December
2003, Hong Kong represented around 60
per cent of total Southern China volume.
Notwithstanding the uncertainties provoked by
the implementation of the US Government’s
Container Security Initiative requirements, the
Middle East military conflict and the SARS
outbreak, Modern Terminals handled around
four million TEUs during 2003, representing a
year-on-year growth of more than 10 per cent
: — far above the Kwai Chung average. This
Modem Termmals handled 4 million TEUs last year representmg Outperformance was main{y driven by Strong
year-on-year growth of more than 10%. . ) .
feeder and transshipment business. -
PRODUCTIVITY INDEX
THROUGHPUT MARKET SHARE ($/TEU HANDLED)
Millien TEUs % %
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Though the pricing differential between Kwai
Chung and other Southern China ports has
narrowed considerably, the average tariff
achieved by Modern Terminals remained
under pressure. Modern Terminals’ market
share in Kwai Chung, however, expanded to
33.1 per cent from 30.3 per cent in 2002.

The delivery to Modern Terminals of the four

~ berths at Container Terminal ¢ in Hong Kong

began in October 2003. The whole delivery
process is expected to last until the fourth
quarter of 2004. Once two of the new berths
are swapped with ACT, a new operator,
Modern Terminals’ operations in Kwai
Chung will consist of 7 1/2 berths, spread
over Container Terminals 1,2, 5and 9. Asa
result of this berth-swapping arrangement,
Modern Terminals stands to benefit not only
from additional capacity but also from an even
higher level of efficiency.

All ongoing projects in China are progressing
smoothly and on schedule. While the first
berth at Shekou Container Terminals Phase H
commenced operation in August last year,
the second berth will become operational
within the coming month. Taicang, a new
project in the Yangtze River Delta area in
which Modern Terminals plans to acquire a
majority stake, currently awaits final Central
Government approval, municipal approvals
have already been granted. During the year
under review, Modern Terminals also
entered into a joint-venture agreement with
China Shipping 1o explore investment
opportunities related to the Yangshan project
in Shanghai.




CHINA | m WHARF CHINA LIMITED

Modern Termiinals’ operatians i
‘the fourth quarter of 2004: "

dec 1,294
o TEUs:bgr Headcount 3,072 2,177
"'~ Market Share 33.1% 303% 31.1% 28.9% 27.2% 26.2%

The Wharf (Holdings) Limited Annuat Report 2003 3¢
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(I} REVIEW OF 2003 RESULTS AND SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE

REVIEW OF 2003 RESULTS

rofit attributable to Sharehoiders
The Group reported a profit attributable to shareholders of HK$3,043 million for the year of
2003, an increase of HK$784 million or 35% against HK$2,258 million achieved in 2002.
Earnings per share were HK$1.24, compared to HK$0.82 recorded in the previous year.

A fower aggregate attributable impairment provision for properties and investments was provided
in 2003 than that for 2002 by HK$641 million. Also included in the profit for 2003 are a deemed
profit of HK$312 million arising from the distribution of i-CABLE shares as part of the Company’s
interim dividend for the year and a write-down of fixed assets in the sum of HK$85 million.

Excluding the above-mentioned non-recurring items in' both years, the Group’s net profit would
be HK$3,122 million in 2003, a mere decrease of HK$84 million or 3% compared to HK$3,206
million for 2002. The decline was chiefly attributable to the decrease in operating profit of the
Group's hotel business by HK$118 million consequent to the outbreak of SARS in mid-March
2003, a drop in office rental contribution of HK$85 million under an oversupply situation
prevailing in the Grade A office market, an additional tax charge of HK$223 million primarily in
respect of current year’s taxation and deferred tax liabilities for a rise of 1.5% in Profits Tax rate
and increase in profit shared by minority interests of HK$21 million.” The increase of HK$198
million in share of operating profits from associates, and savings of HK$275 million in
borrowings cost mitigated the decline in profit for the year under review.

Group’s Turnover

The Group's turnover for the year was HK$11,253 million, an overall insignificant decrease of
HK$80 million or 1% against HK$11,333 million earned in 2002. The decrease in turnover was
“chiefly attributable to the reduction in hotel revenue of HK$83 million as a consequence of
SARS and office rental income of HK$105 million, despite revenue growths totaling HK$161
million reported 'by Communications, Media and Entertainment and the logistits segment.

Group Operating Profit

Group operating profit before borrowing costs for the year 2003 amounted to HK$5,050
million, decreased by HK$291 million or 5% from HK$5,341 million in 2002. This was primarily
owing to unfavourable results of hotel operations and reduction in rental contribution from
office area as explained above.



SEGMENT PERFORMANCE

Property Investment _

For 2003, the Property Investment segment reported a revenue of HK3$4,275 million
representing a reduction of HK$167 million or 4%. Operating profit showed a decrease of
HK$224 million or 7% to HK$2,901 million. Additional operating and promotional expenditure
totaling HK$16 million were incurred during and after the SARS period in respect of the core
property assets of the Group.

Wharf Estates Limited

Harbour City

Harbour City, a core property investment asset of Wharf Estates Limited, generated a lower
'_'(:urnover to HK$2,732 million for 2003, as a result of a (eduction in revenue from hotel

. businesses, office area and apartments. With the local tourist industry adversely affected by the
spread of SARS in the second quarter of the year, the hotel operations recorded a decrease in
sales of 13% to HK$533 million in 2003. Following stabilization of the SARS impact, the
obéj’ating environment improved with the restoration of average room occupancy rate to the
normal 80% plus level. Average hotel room occupancy for the whole year of 2003, however,
reduced to around 67% as opposed to 86% achieved last year. Office area rental had been
under pressure given the oversupply situation of Grade A office. The apartments also reported
a decrease in revenue due to decline in both occupancy rate and rental rate in an intense
competitive environment. Retails area recorded slightly lower contribution mainly because of
rental loss in certain parts of Ocean Terminal, which had been reserved during part of 2003 for
renovation and planned refurbishment programmes.

Times Square

Times Square, another core investment property asset of Wharf Estates Limited, generated in
2003 total revenue of HK$841 million, which was lower than the previous year’s level by 6%. A
lower office occupancy level in early part of 2003 was recorded, following the exit of an anchor
tenant, which negatively impacted the revenue contribution from its office area. Revenue from
retails area continued the rising trend of the previous year, resulting in improvement in both the
occupancy rate and rental rate.

Plaza Hollywood .

v _P,Iaza Hollywood, under Wharf Estates Limited, reported lower revenue of HK$238 million for
'-,5,_2‘003 further to the declines both in the occupancy rate and rental rate;l The unfavourable
résults. were partly due to its proximity to some SARS affected areas in Kowloon East.

The aggregate property value of Harbour City, Times Square and Plaza Hollywood owned under
wWharf Estates Limited was HK$50,139 million, based on the revaluation as at December 31,
2003 conducted by independent vaiuers. This portfolio generated total revenue and operating
profit of HK$3,811 million and HK$2,683 million respectively for 2003 against HK$4,034 million
and HK$2,865 million respectively reported in 2002.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSFON'& ANALYSIS

Wharf Estates Development Limited

Owning various residential, office and industrial investment properties located in Hong Kong
including the peak properties, Wharf Estates Development Limited reported improvement both
in aggregate revenue and operating profit in 2003. The better results were achieved with the
support of an aggressive leasing strategy.

Wharf Estates China Limited

With its two major investment properties in Mainland China, namely, Beijing Capital Times
Square and Shanghai Times Square, Wharf Estates China Limited recorded satisfactory growth
both in aggregate revenue and operating profit in 2003, reflecting the resilience of these
property assets and the high economic growth of China Mainland.

Communications, Media and Entertainment (*"CME"}

Benefited from the continuous increases in subscribers to Pay TV, Broadband Internet
multimedia and telecommunication services, the CME segment reported growth of HK$143
million or 4% to HK$3,578 million in aggregate revenue; and growth of HK$3 million or 1% to
HK$432 million in operating profit in 2003. Albeit with increased subscribers, the Broadband
services reported unfavorable results principally due to the erosion in its ARPU resulting from
keen price competition.

i-CABLE

Pay TV

Subscribers for Pay TV grew by 8% to reach 656,000 at the end of 2003, in spite of the absence
of FIFA World Cup the year before. Accompanied by a significant year-on-year savings on
programming cost and strong airtime sales performance in the second half of 2003, Pay TV
turnover increased by HK$23 million or 1% to HK$1,734 million and operating profit rose by
HK$112 million or 34% to HK$444 million for 2003.

Internet and multimedia

Internet and multimedia revenue decreased by HK$41 million or 9% to HK$409 million for
2003, in spite of a growth of Broadband subscribers by 14% to reach 258,000. The operating
results recorded a loss of HK$85 million against profit of HK$9 million in 2002. The
unfavourable results were primarily due to substantial decline of ARPU from HK$180 year-on-
year to HK$129 following the adoption of an aggressive pricing strategy to maintain subscriber
growth momentum under the highly competitive environment.

As compared to 2002, the consolidated results of Pay TV and Internet and multimedia
businesses revealed a decrease in the group revenue of i-CABLE by HK$18 miilion or 1% to
HK$2,143 million but an increase in its operating profit before unallocated corporate expenses
by HK$18 million or 5% to HK$359 million due to significant programming cost savings as a
resuft of stringent cost control and the non-recurring World Cup related costs incurred in 2002.
Added by the benefit of the decline in finance cost and the non-recurrence of the impairment
loss on investment recorded in 2002, the net profit attributable to shareholders of i-CABLE thus
rose by HK$103 million or 88% to HK$220 million.



Wharf T&T

Against a backdrop of the competitive environment that has put pressure on nearly every aspect
of the telecommunication business including but not limited to ARPU, operating cost, churn rate
and sales force resources, Wharf T&T managed to increase its telecommunication revenue by
11% to HK$1,235 million compared to the results of 2002. During 2003, its installed base of
fixed lines grew by 28% 1o reach 433,000 lines with a market share of 11%. The company's
revenue from fixed-line telephony services rose by 16% to HK$982 million and IDD revenue rose
by 7% to HK$253 million. The revenue ratio between fixed line and IDD was improved to
nearly 4:1 to reflect the continuing shift to fixed line focus in its business model. The operating
profit was, however, virtually unchanged at HK$54 million mainly due to higher depreciation
charge, which neutralised the increase in EBITDA.

Logistics

The total revenue of Logistics segment, mainly contributed by Modern Terminals Limited
("Modern Terminals”), a 55.3%-owned subsidiary, was HK$3,221 miilion, an increase of HK$18
million or 1% as compared with HK$3,203 million in 2002. The operating profit, however,
slightly decreased by HK$11 million or 1% to HK$1,827 million.

Modern Terminals

" The revenue of Modern Terminals increased in 2003 as a result of a growth in throughput
handled, mainly driven by strong feeder and transshipment volume. Operating profit of Modern
Terminals also improved satisfactorily despite the keen competitive environment of the terminal
industry in South China.

The decrease in profit contribution from other logistics activities, resulted mainly from SARS
impact, was largely offset by the increase in profit contribution of Modern Tergginals.

Property development

In addition to their property investments, Wharf Estates Development Limited and Wharf Estates
“China Limited conducted during the year some property sales activities in Hong Kong and China
respectively but recorded a small aggregate loss. The Sorrento and Bellagio residential projects
undertaken through associates progressed their respective developments according to schedule
and their sales resuits, not being accounted for as the Group’s turnover, were successful as
mentioned hereunder having regard to the volatile market conditions.

Depreciation and amortisation v
-.Depreciation and amortisation charge for the year 2003 totalled HK$1,292 million (including
' '-.._jt_he amortisation of goodwill HK$50 million), an increase of HK$84 million or 7% over 2002.
The rise resulted from the combined effect of a net increase in depreciation of i-CABLE and
Wharf T&T, which incurred further capital investments to cater for subscriber growth and service
enhancement. Amortisation of goodwill increased by HK$28 million in 2003 as its estimated
useful lives had been shortened to better reflect the period during which the related asset will
generate economic benefits for the Group.

The Wharf (Holdings) Limited Annual Rennort 2003
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. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Borrowing costs

Due to a persistently low interest rate environment as well as a declining Group's net debt level,
net borrowing costs as charged decreased by HK$275 million or 36% to HK$480 million for
2003 from HK$755 million incurred in the previous year. The charge was after capitalization to
related assets of HK$54 mitlion for the year compared to HK$94 million in the previous year.
The Group's average borrowing cost was 2.66% p.a., a reduction from 3.59% p.a. in 2002.

Net other charges

The net other charge recognized in 2003 comprised the deemed profit of HK$312 million
arising from a distribution of 244.7 million i-CABLE shares by the Company as part of 2003
interim dividend, net impairment provision of HK$276 million for properties under development,
impairment provision of HK$58 miilion for investments and write off of fixed assets of HK$85
million; all before deduction of minority interest. The deemed profit on distribution of the
i-CABLE shares represents the difference between the total value of HK$508 million, calculated
on basis of the closing price of i-CABLE share on August 19, 2003, and the net book value of
the distributed shares.

The charges in 2002 mainly included net provisions of HK$285 million for impairment in value
of various properties under development and HK$149 million for impairment in value of
investments.

Share of profits less losses of associates

The share of profits of associates for the year was HK$232 million compared to loss of HK$495
million in 2002. The share of profit for the year under review mainly came from attributed.
profit on sale of Sorrento residential units benefited from the rebounding residential market,
particularly in the second half of 2003. The attributed losses for last year mainly resulted from
the Group’s share of the aggregate provisions of HK$589 million made by the associates for the
impairment in value of two property development projects, namely, Sorrento and Bellagio, 40%
and 33-1/3% respectively owned by the Group.

Profit before taxation

The profit before taxation, which include the non-recurring items and provisions as stated
above, increased by HK$1,098 million or 30% to HK$4,755 million for 2003 from HK$3,657
million against previous year.

Taxation

The taxation charge for 2003 was HK$952 million, a jump of HK$223 million from HK$729
million recorded in the previous year. The significant increase primarily resulted from the rise in
the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate t0 17.5% (2002: 16%), which affected not only the current tax
charge but also the deferred tax liabilities. The latter item had, inter afia, been enlarged upon the

adoption of the new accounting standard SSAP 12 “Income taxes” in the current financial year.




-

Minority interests

Minority interests were HK$760 million compared to HK$662 million in 2002. The increase
arose mainly from better results achieved by two non-wholly owned subsidiaries, namely,
Harbour Centre Development Limited and i-CABLE.

Included in the Group's profit attributable to the shareholders is profit of HK$1,051 million
(2002: HK$883 million) contributed aggregately from three major non-wholly owned
subsidiaries, namely, the 55.3%-owned Modern Terminals, 67.1%-owned i-CABLE and 66.8%-
owned Harbour Centre Development Limited. Total dividends received from these subsidiaries
amounted to HK$891 million for the year 2003 (2002: HK$853 million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Shareholders’ funds

The Group’s cdnsolidate‘d net asset value was HK$51,628 million or HK$21.09 per share at
December 31, 2003, grew from the restated value of HK$47,734 million or HK$19.50 per share
at December 31, 2002, respectively, The improvement partly reflected the net appreciation in
the Group's investment and hotel property portfolios, which were revalued by independent
valuers at December 31, 2003. A transfer of a net revaluation surplus of HK$2,201 million was
made to the Group’s revaluation reserves account for the year.

Shareholders’ funds at December 31, 2002 was restated downwards by HK$979 million as a
prior year adjustment by providing an additional net deferred tax liabilities to comply with the
new requirements of SSAP 12 “Income taxes” (revised) retrospectively with effective from
January 1, 2003.

Supplemental Information
To better reflect the underlying net asset value of the Group, the following objective-base

adjustments are given below:

Per share
Book net asset value at December 31, 2003 HK$21.09
Add adjustments for:-
Modern Terminals

_ - based on the previous average transaction prices 212

i-CABLE
- based on market value at December 31, 2003 (@HK$1.99 p.s.) 0.64
Adjusted net asset value per share at December 31, 2003 HK$23.85

The Wharf (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2003
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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Net cash generated from the Group’s operating activities

For the year under review, net cash generated from the Group’s operating activities increased to
HK$5 4 billion from HK$4.7 billion in 2002, This was partly due to the proceeds of HK$0.5 billion
from disposal of certain listed debt securities in 2003. Net cash inflow of HK$1.1 billion was
recorded for investing activities which comprised net repayments of advances mainly from the
associates undertaking the property developments of Bellagic and Sorrento of HK$1.7 billion, the
uplift of pledged and long term deposits of HK$0.8 billion and proceeds of HK$0.3 billion from
sale of long term listed investments net of purchase of fixed assets for HK$1.7 billion.

Capital expenditure
The capital expenditure, including programming library, incurred by the Group's core businesses
during the year and related capital commitments at the year-end date are analysed as follows:

Capital Commitments
as at December 31, 2003

Business Unit/Company Capital Authorised Authorised
expenditure and but not

in 2003 contracted for’ contracted for

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Miilion

Property investments/others 216 213 1,061
Wharf T&T 512 74 79
i-CABLE 507 137 180
Modern Terminals 441 675 99
1,676 1,099 1,419

At December 31, 2002 2,174 1,700 1,606

The capital expenditure of Wharf T&T and i-CABLE mainly related to network equipment while
that of the Logistics was substantially for construction of Container Terminal 9.

In addition to the above, the Group, had planned expenditures at the end of 2003 of
approximately HK$2.5 billion (2002; HK$1.1 billion) mainiy related to the properties under
development for sale in China Mainland.

Major property projects undertaken by associates

Sale of the Sorrento and Bellagio projects undertaken by associates, 40%-owned and 33-1/3%
owned by the Group, respectively, reported good progress. For the year under review, 673 units
of Sorrento and 332 units of Bellagio were sold. At December 31, 2003, accumulated sales of
Sorrento Phase | and Phase Il units reached 1,251 units or 98% and 728 units or 85% respectively.
The sale of Bellagio accumulated to 1,585 units or 93% of the 1,704 Phases | and }i units.

At December 31, 2003, the cash deposits in Sorrento’s stakeholders account amounted to HK$0.5
billion, which would be sufficient to fully cover its outstanding construction cost for completion of
the whole project. Following the completion of the Phases | and Il units, the cash deposits in
Bellagio’s stakeholders’ account at March 31, 2003, amounting to HK$1.2 billion were distributed
to the shareholders of the project company in proportion to their equity interests in April 2003.
Construction works for Bellagio Phases lll and IV are underway in accordance with schedule and
the estimated cost for completion of these Phases was approximately HK$1 billion. The two
project companies did not have any bank borrowings at December 31, 2003.




Gearing ratios .

As at December 31, 2003, the ratio of net debts to total assets decreased to 21.4%, while the
ratio of net debts to shareholders’ equity decreased to 32.9%, compared t0 25.9% and 42.9% at
Decernber 31, 2002, respectively. The Group’s net debts decreased substantially from HK$20.5
billion at December 31, 2002 to HK$17.0 billion at December 31, 2003, which was made'up of
HK$18.7 billion in debts less HK$1.7 billion in deposits and cash. Included in the Group’s debts
were loans of HK$ 1,300 million borrowed by a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Modern Terminals
(2002: HK$941 million borrowed by Modern Terminals and HK$386 million borrowed by i-CABLE).
These loans are without recourse to the Company and other subsidiaries of the Group.

Availability of committed and uncommitted facilities

High liquidity continued to sustain in the banking market during 2003. Taking advantage of the
circumstances, the Group had arranged loan facilities on favourable terms in an aggregate
amount of HK$6.3 billion for refinancing purpose. The asset-backed notes totalling HK$4.5
billion were prepaid in May 2003, with substantial reduction in interest margins achieved. To
diversify the funding source, the Group has set up a medium term note programme, which
allows the Group from time to time to issue for an aggregate amount of notes the outstanding
of which will not at any time exceed US$1,000 million.

The Group’s available loan facilities and debt securities amounted to HK$26.3 billion. Debts
totaling HK$18.7 billion were outstanding at December 31, 2003, against the available facilities
as analysed below:

31/12/2003
Available Total Undrawn
Facility Debt Facility
HKS$ HK$ HK$
Debt Maturity Billion Billion Billion
Company and wholly owned subsidiaries
Committed facilities
Repayable within 1 year 5.1 5.0 27% 0.1
Repayable between 1 to 2 years 1.6 1.6 9% -
Repayable between 2 to 3 years 4.6 4.6 24% -
Repayable between 3 to 4 years 6.9 2.8 16% 4.0
Repayable between 4 to 5 years 2.0 1.6 8% 0.4
20.2 15.7 84% 4.5
Uncommitted facilities 2.1 1.3 7% 0.8
223 7.0 9% 5.3
_Non wholly-owned subsidiaries
-Committed and uncommitted ‘
Modern Terminals Limited l 2.9 1.3 7% 1.6
i-CABLE Communications Limited | 05 - - 0.5
Others 0.6 0.4 2% 0.2
26.3 18.7 100% 7.6
Secured . 0.5 0.4 2% 0.1}
Unsecured 25.8 18.3 98% 7.5]
Total ‘ 26.3 18.7 100% 7.6
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS F

Subsequent to the year end, banking and other facilities in an aggregate amount of HKSS‘ié3;4
million, with maturity ranging from 3 to 7 years, have been secured to refinance the facilities of . :
HK$6,900 million including those expiring in the year ending December 31, 2004, whxch further :
reduce average borrowing margins and lengthen the Group's maturity portfolio. ' e

As at December 31, 2003, notes of HK$880 million have been issued under the above-
mentioned US$1,000 million medium term note programme, of which only the amount issued
had been included in the amount of the above available facility.

As at December 31, 2003, the banking facilities of the Group were secured by mortgages over
certain investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of HK$3,732 million (2002:

HK$17,923 million).

An analysis of the Group's total debts by currency at December 31, 2003 is shown as below:

HK$ Billion.
Hong Kong dollar : 140
United States doilar (swapped into Hong Kong dallars) 46"
Renminbi 0.1
18.7

The Group’s debts are primarily denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars and the US dollars
loans have almost fully been effectively swapped into Hong Kong dollar loans by forward
exchange contracts.

The use of financial derivative products is strictly controlled. The majority of the derivative products
entered into by the Group were used for management of the Group’s interest rate exposures.

The Group maintained a reasonable level of surplus cash, which was denominated principally in . B

Hong Kong and US dollars, to facilitate the Group’s business and investment activities. As at. -
December 31, 2003, the Group also maintained a portfolio of long-term investments, pnmarlly
in blue-chip securities, with a market value of HK$1.3 billion.

(1) EMPLOYEES

The Group has approximately 10,102 employees. Employees are remunerated according to
nature of the job and market trend, with a built-in merit component incorporated in the annual
increment to reward and motivate individual performance. Total staff costs for the year 2003
amounted to HK$1,999 million, compared to HK$ 1,983 million of 2002.




Disclosure of Further Corporate Information

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {the “Stock Exchange”):

{A) BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGERS
() Directors

Peter K C Woo, GBS, JP, Chairman (Age: 57)

Mr Weo has resumed the role of Chairman since 2002 after having formerly served as
Chairman of the Company from 1986 to 1994. He is also the chairman of Wheelock and
Company Limited (“Wheelock").

Mr Woo was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1993 and awarded the Gold Bauhinia
Star in 1998 by the Hong Kong SAR Government. He has for many years been actively
engaged in community and related services, both locaily and in the international arena,
and has held various Government appointments. He has been the Government-appointed
chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council since October 2000 and had
served as the chairman of Hospital Authority from 1995 to 2000 and the council chairman
of Hong Kong Polytechnic University from 1993 to 1997. He is currently the chairman of
the Hong Kong Environment and Conservation Fund Committee set up in 1994 which he
co-funded with the Government. He also served as a deputy chairman in 1991 to Prince
of Wales Business Leaders Forum, and as a member of the international Advisory Council
of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co., National Westminster Bank, Banca Nazionale del Lavoro, Eif
Aquitaine of France and General Electric of America. He has received Honorary
Doctorates from various universities in the USA, Australia and Hong Kong.

Gonzaga W ] Li, Senior Deputy Chairman (Age: 74)

Mr Li joined Wharf in 1980 as a Director and was appointed as the general manager in
1982. He became Deputy Chairman and Managing Director in 1989, appointed Chief
Executive in 1992 and became Chairman in 1994. He relinquished the title of Chairman
and Chief Executive and assumed the title of Senior Deputy Chairman of the Company
since 2002. He is also the senior deputy chairman of Wheelock and the chairman of
Harbour Centre Development Limited (“HCDL"), New Asia Realty and Trust Company,
Limited {"New Asia”) and Marco Polo Developments Limited {"MPDL") in Singapore and
also the chairman and chief executive officer of Wharf China Limited. He is also a director
of Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (" Joyce”).
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DISCLOSURE OF FURTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

Stephen T H Ng, Deputy Chairman and Managing Director (Age: 51)

Mr Ng joined Wharf in 1981 and became Managing Director in 1989. He has been a
director, deputy chairman, president and chief executive officer of i-CABLE
Communications Limited {*i-CABLE") since 1993 and became its chairman since 2001.
He is also the deputy chairman of Wheelock, a director of Joyce and the chairman,
president and chief executive officer of Wharf T&T Limited ("Wharf T&T"). He serves as a
member of the Hong Kong - United States Business Council and the General Commitiee
of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. ’

David J} Lawrence, Executive Director (Age: 57)

Mr Lawrence has been appointed as Executive Director of the Company since 2002. He
joined the Group in 1992 and spent one year with the Group in Hong Kong before
transferring 1o a new appointment in 1993 to expand MPDL of which he is now the chief
executive officer and managing director. He formerly worked for Richard Ellis
international Property Consultants which he joined in 1981, with various responsibilities
including appointments as an Asia Regional Director for Richard Ellis International,
Managing Director of Richard Ellis Singapore, Director of Richard Ellis Bangkok and Chief
Technical Advisor to Richard Ellis Indonesia. He is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, the Singapore Institute of
Surveyors and Valuers and the Singapore Institute of Directors.

Edward K'Y Chen, GBS, CBE, JP, Director (Age: 59)

Professor Chen has been a Director of the Company since 2002. He is currently the
president of Lingnan University in Hong Kong. He is also an honorary professor and a
distinguished fellow of the Centre of Asian Studies at the University of Hong Kong, an
honorary professor of Shantou University, and a visiting professor of Jinan University. He
was a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong in 1991 and 1992, and a member
of the Executive Council of Hong Kong from 1992 to 1997. He was also a member of the
Hong Kong SAR Basic Law Consuitative Committee from 1985 to 1990. He is a director
of First Pacific Co. Ltd. and Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Ltd. and a trustee
of Eaton Vance Management Funds. He is currently chairman of the Hong Kong
Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation.

Paul M F Cheng, JP, Director {Age: 67)

Mr Cheng has been a Director of the Company since 2002, He is currently a non-
executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited and Sino Land Company Limited. Mr. Cheng
is @ member of the executive committee of the PRC-based All China Federation of industry
and Commerce and serves as an advisor to the China National Committee for Pacific
Economic Co-operation and China Center for Economic Research of the Peking University.
In Hong Kong, he is a member of the Chinese University of Hong Kong Council and-an
adjunct professcr of Management of Organisations at the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is also a steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club. He was
formerly the chairman of Inchcape Pacific Limited, N M Rothschild and Sons (Hong Kong)
Limited and a founding partner of China Key Consultants Ltd. He served as the chairman
of the American Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong in 1987 and was the chairman of
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce from 1992 to 1994. He had been a
member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong prior to the handover and also served on




the Provisional Legislature after 1997. He was also a member of the preparatory
committee, appointed by the PRC Government, to prepare for the establishment of the
Hong Kong SAR on July 1, 1997,

Raymond K F Ch’ien, GBS, CBE, JP, Director (Age: 52)

Dr Ch'ien has been a Director of the Company since 2002. He is the executive chairman
of chinadotcom corporation as wel as chairman of hongkong.com corporation, a
subsidiary of chinadotcom corporation. He is also the non-executive chairman of MTR
Corporation Limited and HSBC Private Equity (Asia) Limited and a director of Convenience
Retail Asia Limited, HSBC Holdings plc, Inchcape plc, The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited and VTech Holdings Ltd. From 1992 to 1997, Dr Ch'ien was
a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong, then under British administration. He
was appointed a member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR on July 1, 1997
and served until June 2002. He holds a number of public offices, namely, the chairman of
the Hong Kong/Japan Business Cooperation Committee and the Advisory Committee on
Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption. He is also an honorary
president and the past chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and president
of Hong Chi Association, Hong Kong's leading non-governmental organization helping
mentally handicapped persons.

Erik B Christensen, Director (Age: 56)

Mr Christensen has been a Director of the Company since 2003. He has since 1997 been
the managing director of Modern Terminals Limited (“Modern Terminals”), a 55.34%
owned subsidiary of the Company, being one of the world’s most efficient container
terminal operators. He formerly joined The East Asiatic Company Limited ("EAC") in
Denmark as a management trainee in 1965. Between 1970 and 1990, he spent eight
years in China and 12 years in Hong Kong - from 1983 as the managing director and chief
executive officer for the EAC's group activities in China and Hong Kong. in 1990, Mr
Christensen returned to Copenhagen, and in 1995 he became a member of the EAC's
group management board.

Vincent K Fang, Director (Age: 60)

Mr Fang has been a Director of the Company since 1993. He is the chief executive officer
of Toppy Co. (HK) Ltd., a director of Fantastic Garments Limited and also the chairman of
the Association of Better Business & Tourism Services.

Hans Michael Jebsen, BBS, Director (Age: 47)

Mr Jebsen has been a Director of the Company since 2001. He is the chairman of Jebsen
& Co. ltd. and also a director of Hysan Development Co., Lid. He currently holds a
number of public offices, namely, the vice-president of World Wide Fund for Nature Hong
Kong, the chairman of the Friend’s Committee of the Asian Cultural Council Hong Kong,
an honorary feliow and court member of the Hong Kong University of Science &
Technology, as well as a member of the Council for Sustainable Development, Hong Kong
European Union Business Co-cperation Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, World Wide Fund for Nature international Board of Trustees, Asian Cultural
Council Board of Trustees and Advisory Board of the Hong Kong Red Cross. He was
awarded the Bronze Bauhiniz Star of the Hong Kong SAR in 2001,
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Christopher P Langley, OBE, Director (Age: 59)

Mr Langley has been a Director of the Company since 2001. He began his career with HSBC
group in 1961. He was appointed an executive director of The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Ltd. in 1998 and retired from the HSBC group in February 2000. He is
now a director of Winsor Properties Holdings Ltd., Lei Shing Hong Ltd., Techtronic Industries
Co. Ltd. and Dickson Concepts (International) Ltd. and also a director of Wing Tai Holdings
Ltd., a Singapore publicly-listed company. He was awarded an OBE in 1996.

!
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Quinn Y K Law, Director (Age: 51) L
Mr Law joined the Company in 1983 and has been a Director of the Company since 1998,
He is also a director of i-CABLE, Modern Terminals and Wharf T&T.

Doreen Y F Lee, Director (Age: 47)

Ms Lee joined the Company in 1984 and has been a Director of the Company since 2003.
She is also an executive director of Wharf Estates Limited, Harbour City Estates Limited
and Times Square Limited and is responsible for the leasing and operation of the two core
properties of the Group in Hong Kong, namely, Harbour City and Times Square.

T Y Ng, Director (Age: 56}
Mr Ng joined the Company in 1985 and has been a Director of the Company since 1998.
He is also a director of HCDL, Joyce, New Asia and MPDL in Singapore. !

James E Thompson, GBS, Director (Age: 64)

Mr Thompson has been a Director of the Company since 2001. He established his
company, Crown Worldwide, in Japan in 1965. He is the member of the American
Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong ("ACC") and was appointed as the chairman of ACC
in 2003. He also serves on the Hong Kong - United States Business Council, the Hong Kong
Japan Business Co-operation Committee, and the Hong Kong Korea Business Roundtable.

Note: Wheelock, WF investment Partners Limited, Wheelock Corporate Services Limited (formerly known as
Wheefock Properties Limited), New Asia and Star Attraction Limited (of which Mr P K CWoo, Mr G W /1 i,
Mr 5 THNg andior Mr T'Y Ng isfare director(s)) have interests in the share capital of the Company
discloseable to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) .

Senior Management

Various businesses of the Group are respectively under the direct responsibility of the
Chairman, the Senior Deputy Chairman, the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director,
and the Executive Director of the Company, as named under (A) {I) above. Only those
four Directors are regarded as members of the Group’s senior management.



(B) DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At December 31, 2003, Directors of the Company had the following personal beneficial
interests, ail being long position, in the ordinary shares of the Company and of a subsidiary of
the Company, namely, i-CABLE, and the percentages which the shares represented to the issued
share capital of the Company and i~-CABLE respectively:

Number of Shares

(percentage of issued capital)

The Company
Mr Gonzaga W J Li 636,549 (0.0281%)

Mr Stephen T H Ng
Mr Erik B Christensen
MrTY Ng

650,057 (0.0266%)
25,000 (0.0010%)
178,016 (0.0073%)

i-CABLE
Mr Gonzaga W J Li

68,654 (0.0034%

Mr Erik 8 Christensen 2,500 (0.0001%

{ )
Mr Stephen T H Ng 1,065,005 (0.0527%)
{ )
Mr TY Ng 17,801 {0.0009%)

Set out below are particulars of interests (all being personal interests) in options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company granted under the Executive Share Incentive Scheme

{the "Scheme"”) of the Company held by Directors of the Company during the financial year
(no movements in such options recorded throughout the period from January 1, 2003 to June
16, 2003 on which day all such options lapsed):

No. of
ordinary shares
represented by

unexercised
options
outstanding Period Price
as at during  pershare Consideration
Date 01/01/2003  which rights to be paid  paid for the
granted (all such exercisable on exercise options
(Day/Month/ options lapsed (Day/Month/ of options granted
Name of Director Year) on 16/6/2003) Year) (HK$) (HKS)
Mr Gonzaga W J Li: 22/06/1993 210,000 17/06/1997 19.00 1.00
to 16/06/2003
Mr Quinn Y K Law: 22/06/1993 100,000 17/06/1996 19.00 1.00
: 10 16/06/2003
Mr Stephen THNg:  22/06/1993 200,000 17/06/1996 19.00 1.00
to 16/06/2003
Mr TY Ng: 22/06/1993 100,000 17/06/1996 19.00 1.00

to 16/06/2003
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Except as disclosed above, as recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO in respect of information required 1o be notified tc the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the SFO or to the Mcdel Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies;

i)  there were no interests, both long and short positions, held as at December 31, 2003 by'

any of the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company in shares, underlying”sha’re's 6r~ S

debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO); and o

(i) there existed during the financial year no rights to subscribe for any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company which were held by any of the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age nor
had there been any exercises during the financial year of any such rights by any of them.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

Given below are the names of all parties, other than person(s) who is/are Director of the
Company, who/which were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital of the Company, the respective relevant numbers of shares in which
they were, and/or were deemed 1o be, interested as at December 31, 2003 as recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO and the percentages which the
shares represented to the issued share capital of the Company:

No. of
Ordinary Shares
(percentage of

-‘-"»-.‘--'.r_vr-f:f-v.umnw\hp 5w i

Names issued capital)
()  Woodenfield Limited 140,136,675 (5.73%)
(i) Lynchpin Limited 171,974,029 (7.03%)
(iiiy Star Attraction Limited 171,974,029 (7.03%)
(iv} New Asia Realty and Trust Co., Ltd. : 173,652,028 (7.10%)
{(v) Myers Investments Limited 173,652,029 (7.10%)
{(vi) Wheelock Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Wheelock Properties Limited) 173,652,029 (7.10%)
(vi) Diplock Holdings Limited 1,050,087,051 (42.90%)
(viil) WF Investment Partners Limited 1,051,765,051 (42.97%)
(ix) Wheelock and Company Limited 1,223,739,080 (50.00%)
(x) Bermuda Trust (Guernsey) Limited 1,223,738,080 (50.00%)
(xi) J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. 132,323,704 (5.41%)

Note: For the avoidance of doubt and double counting, it should be noted that duplication occurs in respect of the
shareholdings stated against parties (i) to {x) above to the extent that the shareholding stated against party (i)
above was entirely duplicated or included in that against party (i) above, with the same duplication of the
shareholdings in respect of (i) in (i), (i} in (iv), (v) in (v}, (v) in (i), (vi) in (viD), {vii) in (vii), (viii) in (ix) and (ix) in (x).

All the interests stated above represented long positions and as at December 31, 2003, there
were no short positions recorded in the said register.
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{D) PENSION SCHEMES

Set out below are certain particulars regarding pension schemes operated by the Group:
{1} Mature of Schemes

The Group currently operates a number of pension schemes. The schemes are available to
the employees of the Group. The assets of the schemes are held separately by
independently administered funds.

{i) Funding of the Principal Schemes

The Group’s principal defined contribution schemes are funded by contributions from
employees and employers. The employees and employers contribute respectively to the
schemes sums which represent percentages of the employees’ salaries as defined under
the relevant trust deeds.

The Group's principal defined benefit schemes are funded by contributions from the
employers which are in accordance with recommendations made by the actuaries based
on their valuation.

(1) Forfeited Contributions

For the defined contribution scheme, the contributions are expensed as incurred and may
be reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who have left the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions.

{iv} Cost of all Schemes

The Group's total retirement costs, including the cost related to the Mandatory Provident
Fund which is not operated by the Group, charged to profit and loss account during the
year ended December 31, 2003 amounted to HK$104 million after a forfeiture of the
Group's contributions of HK$4 million.




DISCLOSURE OF FURTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION o F
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(V) Resuits of Valuation

The outline of results of valuation of the Group's principal defined benefit schemes are set
out below with details are set out in Note 29 to the Accounts on pages 102 and 103.

Funding
Name of valuers Method of valuation  Date of valuation ratio
a) HSBC Life Projected unit credit method  December 31, 2003 109% kS :
b) HSBC Life Projected unit credit method ~ December 31, 2003 03% .
o Watson Wyatt Projected unit credit method  December 31, 2003 140%

Hong Kong Limited

(E) EXECUTIVE SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

(y Summary of the Scheme

(a) Purpose of the Scheme:
To give executives of the Group the opportunity of acquiring an equity participation
in the Company, to continue to provide them with the motivation and incentive to
give their best contribution towards the Company’s continued growth and success.

(b} Participants of the Scheme:
Any employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries holding an executive,
managerial, supervisory or similar position, including a Director of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries holding executive office, who accepts the offer of the grant of
an option in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

(c) (i) Total number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each in the capital of the
Company (the “Shares”) available for issue under the Scheme as at
December 31, 2003:

106,732,831

(i) Percentage of the issued share capital that it represents as at December
31, 2003:

4.36%




(d)

fe)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme as at December
31, 2003:

Not more than:
(  10% of the maximum number of Shares available for subscription under the
terms of the Scheme; and

(i) interms of amount of the aggregate subscription price, such amount of
aggregate subscription price in respect of all the Shares for which an employee
is granted options in any financial year as would exceed five times his or her
gross annual remuneration,

Period within which the Shares must be taken up under an option:
Within 10 years from the date on which the option is granted or such shorter period
as the Board of Directors may approve.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised:
One year from the date on which the option is granted.

(i}  Price payable on application or acceptance of the option:
HK$1.00 -

(i)  The period within which payments or calls must or may be made or
loans of such purposes must be repaid:

Seven days after the offer date of an option.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

Pursuant to rule 17.03 (9) of the Listing Rules, the exercise price must be at least the

higher of: ‘

(i} the dosing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business day; and

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

The remaining life of the scheme:"

Four years

[}



DISCLOSURE OF FURTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION ' ’

(1} Details of Share Options Granted
Details of share options granted to Directors of the Company are set out in section (B) above.

Set out below are particulars and movements during the financial year of the Company's
outstanding share options which were granted to 12 employees (some of whom are

Directors of the Company), who are all working under employment contracts that are s
regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purposes of the Employment Ordinance "aridi "? ) “
are participants with options not exceeding the respective individual limits: L

No. of No. of
ordinary shares No. of ordinary shares
represented by ordinary shares represented by Period Price per
unexertised represented by unexercised during share to be ¢
options options lapsed/ options  which rights paid on '
Date  outstanding exercised outstanding exercisable exercise
granted as at during the asat  (Day/Month/ of options
(Day/Month/Year) Jan. 103 financial year Dec. 3103 Year) (HKS)
0] 22/06/1993 1,781,000 (1,781,000) - 17/06/1936 19.00 §
0 16/06/2003
, {ii) 01/08/1996 330,000 (330,000) - 01/08/2002 25.00 2
to 31/07/2003 ¢
(i) 01/08/1996 440,000 (40,000) 400,000 01/08/2005 25.00 :
10 31/07/2006
2,551,000 (2,151,000} 400,000 t

All the share options per (i) and (ii) above lapsed on June 16, 2003 and July 31, 2003
respectively. Except as disclosed above, no share option of the Company was issued,
exercised, cancelled, lapsed or outstanding throughout the financial year.

(F) MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2003:

() the aggregate amount of purchases (not including the purchases of items which are of a
capital nature) attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented less than 30%
of the Group’s total purchases; and

{)  the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.




(G) DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to paragraph 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange. '

Four Directors of the Company, namely, Mr P K C Woo, who is also the chairman and a
substantial shareholder of the Company’s substantial shareholder, Wheelock, and Messrs G W J Li,
STHNgandTY Ng, who are also directors of Wheelock and/or subsidiaries of Wheelock, are
considered as having an interest in Wheelock under paragraph 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Ownership of property for letting and development of properties for sale and/or investment carried
on by Wheelock and subsidiaries of Wheelock constitute competing businesses of the Group.

The ownership of ccmmercial premises by the Wheelock group for rental purposes. is considered
as competing with the commercial premises owned by the Group. Since the Group’s
commercial premises are not in the vicinity of those owned by the Wheelock group, and are
targeted at different customers and would attract different tenants compared to those of the
Wheelock group, the Group considers that its interest regarding the business of owning and
letting of commercial premises is adequately safeguarded.

The development of properties for sale and/or investment purposes by the Wheelock group is
also considered as a competing business of the Group. However, the Group itself has under its

own employment a strong and independent property development team. The Group is
therefore capable of carrying on its property development business independently of the
Wheelock group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent non-executive Directors and the
Audit Committee of the Company would on a regular basis review the business and operational
results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s developmént of properties for sale
and/or investment and property leasing businesses are and continue to be run on the basis that
they are independent of, and at arm’s length from, those of the Wheelock group.
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(‘H) PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

(1

{3)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any Ilsted
securities of the Company during the financial year. :

FREQUENCY OF DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, four Directors’ Meetings were held.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

The Company has complied throughout the year the Code of Best Practice as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. Nevertheless, a connected transaction
in relation to the acquisition of a 39.08% equity interest in City Super (as disclosed in the ..~ . g
Company's annual report for the year ended December 31, 2002), bemg a matter mvolvmg-l-‘
conflict of interest for Wheelock, the Company’s substantial shareholder; was not appr\'" "

meeting of the Company’s Directors in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 11__
abovementioned Code of Best Practice, but instead was duly approved by Resolutlons m Wrmngf :

" of the Board of Directors of the Company.




Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Report and the Audited Statement of Accounts for the
financial year ended December 31, 2003.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND TRADING OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and those of its principal subsidiaries are
set out on pages 107 to 109.

During the financial year, more than 90% of the trading operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries in terms of both turnover and operating profit were carried on in Hong Kong. An analysis
of the principal activities of the trading operations of the Company and its subsidiaries during the
financial year is set out in Note 2 to the Accounts on pages 79 to 81.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group and appropriations of profits for the financial year ended December 31,
2003 are set out in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account on page 62.

Movements in reserves during the financial year are set out in Note 25 to the Accounts on pages 95
1o 98.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend in respect of the year ended December 31, 2003 of HK$802 million (“Interim
Dividend”) was paid by way of (a) cash in an aggregate sum of HK$294 million (“Cash Dividend”),
equivalent to 12 cents per share, and (b) distribution of 244,747,663 shares of HK$1.00 each in the
share capital of i-CABLE Communications Limited ("i-CABLE Shares”) held by the Company
(“Distribution”), with a value of HK$2.075 per i-CABLE Share, being the closing price per i-CABLE
Share on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {the "Stock Exchange”) as at August 19, 2003.
On this basis, the Interim Dividend was 32.75 cents per share in total (2002: interim dividend in cash
of 28 cents per share). Pursuant to the Distribution, one i-CABLE Share was distributed for every 10
Shares of the Company held. The Cash Dividend was paid, and the share certificates of i-CABLE
Shares were also despatched, on September 29, 2003,
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have recommended for adoption at the Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuééd‘a&,
May 18, 2004 the payment on May 25, 2004 16 Shareholders registered on May 18, 2004ofafma
dividend in respect of the year ended December 31, 2003 of 28 cents (2002: 28 cents) per share, = "
absorbing a total amount of HK$685 million (2002: HK$685 million). If this recommendation is” S
approved, the total dividend for the year 2003 would amount to 60.75 cents per share which is
higher than 56 cents for the previous year due to the Distribution.

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in fixed assets during the financial year are set out in Note 12 to the Accounts on pages
88 to 90.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of all such bank loans, overdrafts and/or other borrowings of the Company and of the .
Group as at December 31, 2003 as are repayable on demand or within a period not exceeding'brie_ . ;:'
year are set out in Note 23 to the Accounts on page 94. Particulars of alf other bank loans and -
certain other borrowings as at December 31, 2003 which would fall due for repayment after a péribd
of one year are set out in Note 26 to the Accounts on pages 99 and 100.

Set out below is information regarding certain borrowings of the Group outstanding as at December
31, 2003, all in the form of debt securities issued by wholly-owned subsidiaries of and guaranteed by
the Company:

Description of Debt Outstanding
Name of Subsidiary/Borrower Securities Issued Principal Amount
(1) Wharf International Finance Limited US$ Guaranteed Fixed Rate US$188 Million
Notes due 2004
US$ Guaranteed Series A Fixed Rate US$309 Miltion
Notes due 2007
(2) Fast Lane Investments Limited HK$ Guaranteed Fixed Rate HK$500 Million
Notes due 2004
(3) Wharf Finance (BVI) Limited HK$ Guaranteed Fixed Rate HK$300 Million
Notes due 2004
HK$ Guaranteed Fixed Rate HK3$300 Million
Notes due 2005 4
HK$ Guaranteed Fixed Rate HK$180 Million .-
Notes due 2004 AT B TP
HK$ Guaranteed Fixed Rate HKS$600 Million "~ 1.
Notes due 2006 IR
HK$ Guaranteed Floating Rate HK$100 Million:

Notes due 2008




INTEREST CAPITALISED

The amount of interest (all being borrowing costs) capitalised by the Group during the financial year is
set out in Note 5 to the Accounts on page 84.

DONATIONS

The Group made denations during the financial year totalling HK$3.7 million.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year were Messrs P K C Woo, R H Burns (retired on
May 30, 2003), P M F Cheng, E B Christensen (appointed on January 1, 2003), V K Fang, H M Jebsen,
C P langley, Q Y K Law, D J Lawrence, G W J Li, STH Ng, TY Ng, J E Thompson, P'Y C Tsui (resigned
on March 1, 2003}, Professor E K Y Chen, Dr R K F Ch'ien and Ms Doreen Y F Lee (appointed on
March 1, 2003).

Messrs H M Jebsen, G W J Li, TY Ng and J E Thompson are due to retire from the Board by rotation in
accordance with Article 103(A) of the Company's Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election. None of the retiring Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). \

Under the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Chairman .and those Directors
holding executive offices of the Company are not subject to retirement from the Board by rotation.

As regards the other Directors (none of them holding any executive title of the Company), four of
them will retire as Directors at the forthcoming Annuat General Meeting to be held on May 18, 2004
as mentioned above, and the remaining eight Directors will have their respective terms of office
coming to an end by reason of retirement by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
in 2005 or 2006 in accordance with Article 103(A) of the Company’s Articles of Association.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during the financial year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the financial year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, with the exception that there
existed certain outstanding options to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company and i-CABLE
Communications Limited (”i-CABLE") granted under the Company's Executive Share Incentive Scheme
(the "Company's Scheme”) and {-CABLE’s Share Option Scheme (the "i-CABLE’s Scheme") respectively
to their or their respective group companies’ executives/femployees, one or more of whom was/were
Director(s) of the Company during the financial year.

Under the rules of the two schemes (subject to any such restrictions or alterations as may be _ -
prescribed or provided under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange from S
time to time in force), shares of the Company and i-CABLE may be issued at such prices, not being '
less than 90% and 80% respectively of the Company's and i-CABLE's average closing prices on the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the options, and
the relevant options would be exercisable during such periods, not being beyond the expiration of 10
years from the date of grant, as determined by the boards of directors of the Company and i-CABLE
respectively. During the financial year, no share of the Company or i-CABLE was issued to any
Director of the Company under the Company’s Scheme or the i-CABLE's Scheme.

AUDITORS

The Accounts now presented have been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, who retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
Wilson W S Chan
Secretary

Hong Kong, March 16, 2004




Reportof the Audior

We have aud_lted' he acco _ts on-pages b2
generaﬂi accepted in Hong Kong

RtQFECT VF %eSP@a\iS Bif
The Hong Kong Compames Ordman_ce equ
preparing accounts whic give'a ‘triea
applled conSIs‘centIy that judgements an

solely to you asa body, m accordance
purpose. We- ._do not assume rESDOHS‘lb,

BASIS OF OFEN%@N

We conducted our audlt in accordance w: ‘

accordance wrth the Hong Keng Compames Ordmance

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 16, 2004
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For The Year Ended December 31, 2003

2002 2002 ¢

Note HES Miliion "HKS Miliion’ .-
“ (Restated) -
Turnover '- o - 2 14,253 11,333
' Other net proﬂt/(iosses) 33 (29)
N 17,286 11,304,
' -Drrect costs and operatmg expenses {3,510} (3:781)
Setling. and. marketlng expenses 519} - (490).
, ‘Admmrstratrve and corporate. expenses {3137 . .(484)

Operatmg proflt before deprecratton
amortrsatron mterest and 1ax
- "Deprematron and amortrsatron

: ';“:._Operatrng proflt o '_ - ‘ - 2&3
‘ v:Borrowmg costs 5
Net other charges 6

s Share of profrts Iess losses of associates

' Profrt before taxatlon
Taxatlon ‘_ R . 7(c)

) .Proﬂt after taxa’uon
: Mmonty"mterests

profit "ttnbutabll,vto shareholders g 8

9
' Fnal drvadend proposed‘:“after the balance sheet date
.'.Z?Earmngs per share o e ' 10 R T
CoBasic oo HKS1.24 - HKS092'
Cpilwted HKS1.24 .. HK$0.92

The notes on pages 68 to 109 form part of these-accounts.




2063
HKS Milifon

2,695
382

-Pledged' deposrts
Deposrts and cash

1,512
5,088

Current liabilities .. -
Trade: and other. payables )
Short: term loans and: overdrafts.'w
Taxatron payable '

{4,123;
(6,329}
{638;

{11,160}

Nét 'currerii bﬁabiliti es.

(071}
70,602

Totat asséts less current lrabmtres L o

-Caprtal and reserves
Share caprtai
Reserves.

Shareholders equrty
Mmonty‘ mterests‘ ‘

Non-current liabilities

Long term loans 26 12,345 16,381

Deferred taxation 27(a) 1,748 1,614

Other deferred liabilities 28 260 292

' 14,353 18,287

Total equity and non-current liabilities 70,002 69,702
The notes on pages 68 to 109 form part of these accounts.
Peter K C Woo Quinn Y K Law
Chairman Director
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Company Balance Sheet
At December 31, 2003

, 2003 2002 .
- Note HKE Millicn o HK$ Million -

S
nvestments in.subsidiaries

12,670
382

13,052

104

110

@8

13,004

ooy
L A0BET

13,004

“The notes on pages'68 16109 form part of these accounts. "

. QuinnYKlaw
: “Director .

= iPéténi_K-‘,‘Cj'Wbp‘_” k
Chairman




Consohdated Stateme

_For The Year Ended Dece_mber 1 20|

2002
HXS Villion

Totai' edUin as-at j’énba

As restat‘e)d-‘

Surplus/(deﬂcrts) on revaiuatlon of Hotel an
Impairment of propemes under or held for re
Surplus/(deﬁcns) on reva!uatlon of non trad lof vestments:
- by Company/subsndlanes S
-by. assocrates ‘ '
Others

Net gams/(losses) not recogmsed rn the consolxdated-pr_
loss account. -+ L :

Profit attnbutable to shareholders =
As prevrous]y reported’. .
Prior year adjustments’ ansrng from change in accountmg Olle

for deferred tax- A -
As restated '

Investments revaluatron reserves. transferred to the' profrt and !oss accou '
on 1mpa|rment in vatue-of non- tradmg mvestments -
- by Company/subsrdranes ' i

lnvestments revaluation reserves transferred to the profit and [oss account
on dispesal of non- tradmg mvestments

- by Company/subsidiaries- ' o o 25' 12 v 7
- by associates - C S L2s i -
Final.dividend approved in respect of the previous year o Ha) _&»25 {685} (1,223)
Interim dividend approved in respect of the current year O(a) & 25 {802} (685)
Exercise of share options - 7
1,802 423

Total equity as at December 31 51,628 47,734

The notes on pages 68 to 109 form part of these accounts.
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petngproft

n-ogerations

2 002
HK$ Mrl/ron

2002

Deposits and cash acquired

5,838
.lnterest mcome ) Ll S {131}
' Drvrdends recervabSe from hs’ted "'fdunhsted rnvest 'ent {123}
' Deprecratron ' ' 1,117
_Amortrsatron _ : 7=
_-Loss on. sa{e of fixed. assets 12
'Other net (profrt)/loss {333
Exchange adjustments o
Decrease in. propertxes held for'sale e 3%
Decrease/(mcrease) in: propertres under: evelopment for al 78
Decrease in spare parts and consumables ; b 3
Decrease/(mcrease) in mvestments m hsted debt securmes 528
Decrease in trade and: other recervables : 13%
Decrease in trade and other payables . {537}
Increase in deferred items {1
Decrease in.other deferred habrhtres ‘ {13
Cash generated from operaflons €,2%8
2603 . ,_
Miifion . HKS$"Million::
Net assets acquired :
Trade and other payabies {18}
Minority interests 22
Satisfied by_:A
Cash consideration 5 -
Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the purchase of a.subsidiary
Cash consideration 3 -

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the purchase of a subsidiary

(43}

L e




Notes to the Accounts

1. P:Réi\iﬁ?.%i ACCOUNTING POLICIES

-1 Statemerﬂt os fc*nniwns.n




Unrealised profits.and losses resultmg from tran: :

to the extent of the Group’s interest in'the assocrate

assets transferred the unrealised. Iosses will. be recogmsed rmmedratet
account. '

i Googwilfinegative goodwil)

The Group adopted Statement of Standard Accountlng Practrce 30 "Busrness combl_

prefit and loss account when the future Iosses and expenses are- recognrsed Any remarn g: negatrve

goodwill, but not exceedmg the fair values of the non- monetary assets: acquired, s recognrsed |n the
consolidated profit and loss account over the- werghted average useful: life of those non monetary assets that .
are depreciable/amortisable. Negative goodwill in. excess of the fair values of the non- monetary assets ’
acquired is recognised rmmedrately in.the consolidated profrt and !oss account ’

On disposal of a controlled subsidiary or an associate, any attributable amount of purchased QQOdwvinnot e
previously amortised through the consclidated profit and loss account or which has previously been dealt
with as a movement on Group reserves is included in the calculation of the profit and loss on disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists an impairment |oss is recognised as an expense in the
consolidated profit and loss account.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

rorhe
)
iy
o
=

i inwvestment propertias

Investment properties are defined as properties which are income producing and intended to be held for the
long term. Such properties are included in.the balance sheet at their open market value, which is assessed
annually by external qualified valuers. Changes in the value of investment properties are dealt with as
movements. in the investment properties revaluation.reserves. If the total of these reserves is insufficient to
cover a deficit, on a portfolro basis, the excess of the deficitis charged to the consolidated proﬂt and loss
account When a surplus arrses on subsequent revaluatron on a portfolio basis, it will be credited to the
consolldated proflt and loss account if and to ‘the extent that a deficit on revaluation had previously been

‘ charged to the consolrdated profit and loss account. On disposal of rnvestment properties, the revaluation
surplus of. defrcrt prevrously taken to the investment. propertres revaluation reserves is included in calculatmg

i the profrt or loss on drsposal lnvestment propertles with-an- unexpxred lease term of 20 years or less are
’"jstated at carrymg value less accumulated deprecratron and provision for impairment loss.

C 3*ooe'ue‘ u"rfe» of heig. for reoeveloprtéef:f
C .Propertxes under or held for- redevelopment for investment purposes are stated at cost, including borrowing
. Costs,. or carrymg value Iess such provxsrons for |mparrment loss. These propemes are reclassified as
" ~|nvest_ment properties: upo‘n_rssue of the occupatron permit.

;:All., devel.opmen_t costs including borrowing costs are capitalised up to the date of practical completion,

' Hotel and club propertles are stated at their open market value based on an annual professional valuation. o
g Changes m the value of hotel .and: club, propertres are ‘dealt with as movements in the other properties f -,
e revaluatlon reserves When a deflcrt arses on revaluatron it will be charged to the consolidated profit and - E 3
JJo nt |f and to the extent that lt exceeds the amount held in the reserve in. respect of that same

rovrsron for "mparrrnent loss Cost rncludes matenals labour and an: appropnate proportlon of overheads
) o _:and borrowmg costs drrectly attrrbutable to the acqursrtron constructron or productlon of such ‘equipment
. _-whrch necessarrly takes a substantral penod of time. to get ready for its- :ntended use.

"'!"OO"F‘IGS -&n d -“ ECJ assets ”’C‘ 'y TQF O./Vl" L:S:‘

. ,Other proper‘nes and ftxed assets held for own use are stated at cost less accumulated. depreciation and
. -iprovrsron for rmpalrment loss

vi. ';'Subsequent expend:ture relatmg to a flxed asset that has already been recognnsed is added-tc:the carrying

vamount of. the asset w’nen |t is.probabie that future economic benefrts in-excess of the ongrnally assessed

. ,standard of. performance of the- ‘existing-asset, will flow to the Group.- All other subseguent expenditure is
recognased as.an. expense rn the penod in whach rt rs rncurred




total Ultimate gross revenues from all sources

Invantorias

Jror‘ arties fstd Yor saiz

in which the reversal oceurs.

i, Properifes under development for saje .
Properties under development for sale are-classified as current assets and stated at the lo' » ' 1
realisable value. Cost includes the aggregate costs of. development borrowmg costs capltalnsed and other ‘
direct expenses plus attnbutable profit, less pre- sales proceeds Net reallsable value is determlned by the .
Directors, based on prevailing market conditions.

The amount of any write down of or provisionfor propemes under development for sale | is recogmsed as an o
expense in the period the write down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any: wnte down o1,
provision arising from an increase in net realisable value is recognised in the consohdated proflt an
account in the period in which the reversal occurs,

Pre-sale proceeds received and receivable from the purchasers. of the properties under development for sale
are set off against inventories in the balance sheet. Profit on pre-sale of properties under development for. |
sale is recognised over the course of the development and is ca iculated each year as a proportion of the total
estimated profit to completion; the proportion used being the lower of the proportion of construction ¢osts
incurred at the balance sheet date 10 estimated total construction costs and the proportion of sales proceeds
received and receivable at the balance sheet date to total estimated sales.




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

sy ant fem em e -
PO YOr SEME onrinue;

Borrowing costs relatrng to properties under development for sale are capitalised up to the date of practical
completron.

di Spare paris and corsumaiziers
Spare parts and consumables are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all -
costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred-in bringing the inventories to their present -

location. Net realisable value is determined by the Directors, based on the estimated selling price in the

-ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the-sale.

' ,‘The Group deﬂnes cash and cash equivalents as cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and

other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and whrch are sub)ect to an insignificant risk of changes in value, which were within three

_months of maturrty at acqursrtron ‘Bank overdrafts that are repayab[e on demand and form an integral part of

the Group % cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the- purpose
of the consolidated cash flow statement.

"MAN" 34 ; ﬂ““f;’-‘
Forergn currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. ‘Monetary forergn currency balances and the balance sheets of overseas subsidiaries are

:'translated rnto Hong Kong dollars at the exchange- rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The profit and loss

' accounts of overseas subsrdrarres are translated into Hong Kong dollars at weighted average exchange rates for

-__:the year Drfferences arrsrng from the translation of the-accounts of overseas subsidiaries are dealt with in capital

reserves and those arrsrng from the financing of propertres under development by foreign currency borrowings

‘4-_are caprtahsed as part of the development costs Al other exchange differences are dealt with in the
o consolrdated profrt and loss account. On drsposa! of an overseas subsidiary, the cumulatrve amount of the
.exchange dn‘ferences whrch reiate to that overseas subsrdrary is.included in the calculation of the profit or Ioss

T on drsposal

"-lrablhtres are revalued at the balance sheet date at the exchange rates ruhng at that date. Realrsed gains and -

R Iosses on currenty. hedging transactrons are offset against gams and losses resulting from currency fluctuations

rnherent i the underlyrng forergn currency assets and liabilities. Unreahsed gains and losses on foreign-exchange
rate: contracts and swaps desrgnated as hedges are included under the same classification as the assets and
habrlrtres whrch they hedge. Gains and losses on foreign-exchange contracts and swaps not entered into for

-hedging purposes arevdealtvwrth in the consohdated profit and loss account.

leawes

!1\

Where the group Ieases out assets under operating leases, the assets are included in the balance sheet
according to their nature and where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the Group's depreciation
policies, as set. out in note 1(e).above. Revenue ansrng from operating leases is.recognised in accordance with
the Groups revenue recognition: pohcres as set out in note 1(m) (i) below.

i T




Rental i income under operatlng leases is. recognrsed in the consolrdated profrt and-loss account, in equal
instalments over the’ accountmg penods covered by the lease term except where an alternatlve basis:is more ‘
representatrve of the pattern of bengfits to be derrved from the leased asset. Lease rncentlves granted are
.recognlsed in.the consolidated profit and loss account as an rntegral part of the aggregate net Jease |
payments recelvable Contmgent rentals are recognrsed as lncome in the accountmg perlod which the /
are earned Vo :

i income from salevof completed 'propert'y' i»s_’-recognlsedl.upon "cornp_l'etlon' of '_rhe s_'a‘les::agree_nien.’t_s

i, Income from pre-sale of properties under development is recognrsed by reference to the stage of completloni' " B
over the course of development (see note l (r) (n)) '

iv. Income from communications, media and entertalnment operatlons logrstrcs operatlons and hotels
operations is recognised.at the time. when the’ servrces are provrded o

v Dividend income from unlisted rnvestments is recogmsed when the shareholders nght to recerve payment 1s
estabhshed

Dividend income from listed investments is recognrsed when the share prlce of. the |nvestment goes
ex-dividend.

#i. Interest income is accrued on a time- apportloned basis by reference to the prrncrpal outstandrng and the
rate applicable.

wii. Interest income from dated debt securities intended to-be held to maturlty is recognrsed as it accrues, as
adjusted by the amortisation of the premium or drscount on acquisition, so 35 16 achieve a. constant rate of
return over the period from thé date of purchase to the date of maturity.

iy Dederred revenus
Income received in advance attributable to long term service contracts is deferred and recognised over-the
contract period on a straight line basis.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated profit and foss account in the year in which t‘heyare incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, constructionor -
production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended useor- -
sale. S

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNT’NG POLICIES (continued)

‘0.. income tax
R Income tax for the year comprises ‘current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current

- tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogmsed in'the profit and loss account except

: to' he extent that they relate to rtems recognrsed drrectly in equrty in whrch case they are recognised in

a _' Wxil anse from the reversa! of exrstrng taxable temporary
Iat" to the same taxatron authonty and the same: taxable entity,

v‘d 'abr]mes th Company’ or the Group mtends etther o settle ona
'nd settle:,e., rabmtres s;multaneousiy, or "

~ o N T T



PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIE;

0. inceme tax {continued)
v, (rontmued)

‘= inthe case of deferred tax asse _ and,.
authonty on elther' S

- the same taxable-eniiiy;- 5l,‘ L

d)l’ferent taxable entmes whlch in eac'.

control or common Slgmﬁcant mﬂuence Related pa .

Q. Provisicns

outflow of economlc beneflts is. remote.

r. Segment ;'apc;rt'rsg

as those that can be allocated on'a reasonable basis tor that segment Segment revenue expenses ,_assets and; _
liabitities are determined before intra-group balances and intra- ~group transactlons are- ellmlnated as part of the %

consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances and transactions: are between group

companies within a single segment. Inter—segmem pricing is. based on Slmllar terms as those avallable to. other '
external parties. : S

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets:(both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-bearing borrowings, corporate and
financing expenses.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5. Empiovee beneﬁts

I

The Group operates Lhe following pr‘ncrpa! pension schemes:—
Defined contribution pensuon schemes
Contnbutxons to the schemes are expensed as incurred and may be reduced by contributions forfeited by

- those employees who' 1eave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions. The assets of the schemes S
are held separately from those of the Group in.independently administered funds. ' T

N andatory provrdent funds

: i~.Contnbut|ons to the: Mandatory Provident Fund as-required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provxdent Fund :

5‘the;r present: values v

'fhemes Ordrnance are charged to the consclidated profit and loss account when incurred.

-Defmed beneflt pensron schemes

roub svnet obilgatlon in respect of deﬂned benefit pensnon schemes is calculated separately for each
schem b _"s‘umatmg the amount of future beneﬂt that employees have earned in return for their service in
vrrent and pnor penods that beneﬁt s dtscounted to determine the present value and the fair value of




2603
HKS Million

HKS Million

4,275
3,552
190
533

2,901
2,745

3,578
1,734

-d

(256)

5,050
(480)

(85)
(276) -
254

. Investment and others” -
Associates . - .
Property development o 255
_'Ihvc‘_estfnentfahdlcﬁheréf o L 37

Profit:before taxation - ‘ : 4755 v

Property investment includes gross rental income from investment properties of HK$2,836 mil_iioh-
(2002: HK$2,901 million). '
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

-a. Business seé_ments {continued)
Note: Inter-segment revenue eliminated on consolidation-includes:

2003 2002

N . Property.investment. - 91

L AOME w e 161
LT e Paytelevision T e o 37

o Intermet and multimediaT 4

101

41
51

2003
HKS Million

2003
HKS$ Million

2,833
1,654
1,067

112
1,218
539
182

61,104
52,552
4,997
3,555
5,909
1,617
881

2,498
3,340
71
6,002
5,813
189

721
465

32
1,962
1,927
35

6,013
183
19,317

73,015
4,499
3,648

| hfe_ ‘group:tramsacti

81,162

Total assefs/liabilities 25,513

T un ted-items mainl
-rand financing: expenses:

Indludedin the property developrient se
sale undertaken by associates of HKS1.




2003

HKS Million

2003
HKS Million

176

299

131
31
14

53
15
31

1,054

333
174

507
517
30

446

441

o Atk m ok Pl et | e d

1 P e e e SAAD

=



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

3. OPERATING PROFIT

‘a.- Operating profit is arrived at after charging:

2003 2002 -
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million -

i Dépréc_iéﬁqh .

3 :s'set's‘_:ﬁ:glvcj;ifbv_r ‘use.under. operating leases

‘outgoings, i ncluding contingent rentals

2003 :

HKS Million -

1




2003 -
Number

HKS Million

,'Contnbutrons Yo/ pension'schemes = . T
: ‘Drscretronary bonuses and/or performance related bonuses ST -

Compensation- forloss of office. .~ . R -
‘Inducement forjommg the Group o S -
Total © E o R o N R ~

2003
Bands {in-HKS) Number \ lumr
$3,000,001 —-$3,500,000 : - 1
$3,500,001 - $4,000,000 - 1

- 2
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued) .

4.  OTHER NET PROFIT/(LOSSES)
'Ot"he_r_-nvet p}rdﬁt/(l}o,ss'es.)‘ ['epres'én-tsv a net profit/{loss) on disposal of investments and includes a revaluation deficit of
- “HK$13:million (2002 deficit of-HK$ 7 million) transferred from the investments revaluation reserves.

2003 - 2002

HKS Million HK3 Million

EA 233 362
e 202 390

97

849

(94)

755

2002 2002

Hi$ Million HKS$ Million

oo {276) (285)
Note 6a) (58) (73)
’ _ (19)-

(5) (57)

312




2003
HK$ Miflion

Share of associates’ Horg

2003
HKS Million

Profit béfoi’eﬁé){ tlo : . 4,755

829 |
129
(117)
64 -
Tax losses utlhsed o S LR e (166) -
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax baIances : 99 .-

Actual total tax charge DU . ‘ 'i 952

e. None of the taxation payable in the balance sheet is. expected to be settled after more than one year.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

8. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

.PrOfit,anributable' toshareholders for the year is dealt with in the accounts of the Company to the extent of
HK$2,486 million (2002: HK$ 1,372 milfion). '

I T e A A A LI

9. DIVIDENDS

- ’_a_.,‘pi\ii_déhd‘s-_fattrit_)h;able,.to-.tbe y‘eafr'

2003 2002
HKS Million HK$ Million

294 685

ppro ed-and paid during the year

2003 2002
HKS Million ~ HKS Million

685 1,223

043 million (2002; HK$2,259
B




for the year ended December 31,2003's.an i ncreased char s f._HKﬁSB mi

(2002: HK$44 million and HK$49 million respectsvely)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

12. FIXED ASSETS

. Group
~ Properties i ‘ Broad- Other
under or casting & properties
S et held for . “Hotel commun- ~ . and
“Investment - “redevelop- -and ¢lub N icatigqs fixed
- . properties . ' ment- -properties equipment assets Total
- HKSMillion - HK$Million. -HKSMillion  HKS$Million  HK$Million  HKSMillion
52,373 3,574 3,339 8,316 9,061 75,6632'
51 286 - 758 299 1,594
{4} - - (205) (71} {280)
- (525} - - 525 -
- - - (85} (150} {235)
- (523) - - {6) (529)
2,160 - 70 - - 2,230
54,580 2,812 3,409 8,784 9,858 79,442
- - - 3,523 4,096 7,619
- - 12 728 377 1,117
- - - (185) (64) (249)
- - - 2) - @
- - - - (150) {156}
- - (12) - - (12)
- - - 4,064 4,259 8,323

71,120




BESTAVAILABLE COPY

ses were HK$55,727 million (2002

recognised-in the conschdate" prof “and loss account)

The gross amounts of.fixed assets of the Group he!d for use in; oparatmg fea

-HK$53,234 million).




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
g. -The Group leases out properties under operating leases, which generally run for an initial period of two to six '*
years, with an option to renew the, lease after that date at which time all terms .are renegotiated. Lease
:pa'_yme'nts_may be varied periodically to reflect market rentals and may contain a contingent rental element .
~which'is based on various percentages of tenants’ sales receipts. . , 7 4

- <" h. The Group’s total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating:ieases is receivable as follows:= = -

. Group .

2003 2002

HKS Riliion HK$ Million ;

2,878 2,914

2,994 3,099 .

135 124 .

6,007 6,137

Company

2003 2002
K$ Mitfion HK$ Miflion
6,458 7,376
31,236 . 36,819
37,694 44,195
{24,038) (31,525)

13656 . 12,670
Q:.bra‘geg__q‘o?eto 109..

terest bearing and: classified as non-current as these are -

Ia¥al . . .. N -



14, GOODWII

2003 -
HKS Million -

441 .

2003 |
HKS Million

“Share of net tangible assets/{iabilities) (583)
mounts. Scit 2,720

- Amountsdu t§~a$oc;afé5f 5 (62)

2,075

::D.etéilg o_f.p:r‘i.nvc;ip'_a__l"’aSsdciétésva_ : D'gt'en‘r;ﬁbér 31, v 2003 :fa_rgIShowfx onpag

Amounts due from and to assocnates are: classn‘xed as non current as. these are not expected to be recoverable/
payable 1 w;thm the- next twe!ve months. T ' : "
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

16. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
included.in the amounts due from associates are loans totalling HK$2,588 million. (2002: HK$4,332 r_nilHon)'
advanced to certain associates involved:in the Sorrento and Bellagio property de\}elcpménts projects, of. which
HK$733- milhon (2002 HK$1,925 million) is interest bearing and HK$1,855 m;lhon (2002 HK$2 407 mnlhon) is
mterest-free The annual interest rates are determmed by the shareholders of the assocxate WIth referenc" to

respe "_bf'the acqunsmon of als 33% interest in-an assoc;ate engaged in log

o'NG TERM HNV&:STMEN"‘S

2003
HKS Million

_Listed Qut§sde't!;io,hgﬂ Kong

 Onlisted

- Market-Valué of listed securities

ED DEBTORS

ofs represent receivables due after more than one year.

DEFERRED ITEMS

2003
HKS$ Million

275
15
142

432




2003

HKS Million

2,075
514
106

2,695

2003
HKS$ Million

2003 °
HKS Million .

31 - 60 days

- 90 days -

355
154
50
64

.Ovér"ébjday L

Group

P ‘Company -

2003 2002 2003 . 2002
HKS Million HK$. Miflion HKS Million  HKS$ Million.
0 - 30 days 284 218 - -
31 - 60 days 66 100 - ~
~90 days 54 64 - -
Cver 90 days 198 153 - -
602 535 - -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

23. SHORT TERM LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
HKS Million ~ HK3 Million HKS Million HKS Milfion
‘ ‘v:U'vS_':doi_lariﬂbatih'g rate notes - 2,743 - -
- :HK-dollar: floating rate-notes - 1,049 - -
dollar ﬁxed rate notes 800 665 - -
lar fixed: 1,468 - - -
rm note 'p(ogr_amrhé 180 - - -
 bankloans . - 37 - -
nk:loans and-overdrafts 3,881 1,778 - 121
6,329 6,272 - 121
2003 2002
" No. of shares No. of shares 2063 2002
Mitlion Million  HKZ Miltion  HK$ Million
3,600 3,600 3,860 3,600
- 2,447 2,447 2,447
2,447 2,847 2,447

0 nd‘HK$19 0)

2; 2~6 mllhon) ordmary shares of the Company at.




K Share

premium ... . “reserve
HKSMilliorr: HKSMillion -
a. The Group s
i Corﬁpan'y and subsidiaries
Balance at January 1, 2002 St
~ as previously reported 7735 o
- priot 'yeaAr-adjufst'me'n‘t in R
respect of deferredtax : P
(Note 11) o A
As restat:ed 7,735
Dividends approved in ‘
" respect.of the previous - _
year (Note 9b). ’ -
Exercise of share options -7

Transferred to the profit-and

loss account on disposal

of non-trading investments -
Transferred to the profit and

loss account on.impairment of

non—trading investme.nts -
Revaluation deficit

— investment properties -

- other properties -

- non-trading investments -
Deferred tax liability

- investment propertiés -
Others -
Profit for the year -
Dividends declared in

respect of the

current year (Note 9a) -

Balance at December 31, 2002
and January 1, 2003 {Restated) 7,742

30.009
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

. _HKSMillion  HKSMillion  HKSMillion _ HKSMillion = HKSMilion  HKSMifiion HKsMiﬂion

25. RESERVES (continued)
Investment

Capital " properties- Investments Other E

Share . redemption revaluation revaluation capital Revenue

premium reserve ‘reserves - reserves reserves reserves Total

S 3, The 'érqup;:'(_fo‘ntinued):.’_ L
Ui Company and subsidiaries icontinvea)

30,009 {482} 8,208

{685) {685)

- (315) -
(18) 25
2,76¢ 2,769

- - (802 {802)

32,109 (686) 10,469 49,870




account o dxsposaf of
non-trading. Investments
"Revaluation deﬂcnt

~—non- tradlng mvestments v

~ Profit for the year

Ba‘{ancé at -_December 31,2003

i - - 1
i - - §
- - 274 274
3 - {690) {689)

Jotal reserves

At December 31, 2003 7,742 732,508 230 (686) 9,779 49,181
,At December 31, 2002 ‘ | R
(Restated) 30,009 (230)  (482). 8241 45287

7,742

F A S Nell



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

25. RESERVES (continued)

Capital

Other
Share redemption capital Revenue
premium reserve reserves reserves Total
HK$Million HKS$Miflion HKSMillion HKS$Million HKS$Million
b The Company o
_ _Balance at January‘l 2002 7,735 . 7 306 3,038 11,086: -
- v:.Exerose of shareoptxons 7 - ~ - 7
; __"»_Dlwdends approved in respect of o
' i0US Y - - -~ (1,223) (1,223
- - - 1,372 1,372
- - - . (685) (685)
7,742 7 306 2,502 16,557

' ctlveiy The reva}uatton reserves have been set up and will
_dopted for the revaluatlon of mvestment properties, hotel

A
B
4




2003 2003
HKS$ Million f HKS Million

. ,Bankioans (unsecured) .
Due:within:Tyear " =%
_Due after more than' 1 year but not

1,778

3,881

‘exceeding 2 years. - i o 1.000 ’ 5253 - -
Due after more than 2 years but not E
exceedmg 5 years, IRV ' 7,518 5,202 - -
- 12,400 12,233 - 121
Total foans v 18,674 22,653 , - 127
Less: Amounts due within 1 year (Note 23) (6,329) (6,272) - (121)
Total long term loans 12,348 16,381 - -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

28. LONG TERM LOANS {continued)
a. As at December 31, 2003, the Group’s net debts, representing the total loans less deposits, listed debt securities
and cash, are analysed as follows:-

20032 2002
HKS Biillion HK$ Million
Secured ‘ : 314 5,030
Bonds and notes : ' a - 4,457}
‘Bank.loans ; 414 573 '
‘Unsecured S | 15,266 17,623
Bonds and notes _ » ) 4,280 5,390
Medrum term note programme- '_' , ’ ‘ 880 -
Bank Ioans and other Ioans _ ) ' 12,400 12,233
R | 18,674 22,653
e ' S {156} (156)
. ok Lrsted debt securmes ' : - {525)
' edged deposxts ' ' - (293)
] {9,512} (1,225)
17,006 20,454

g : ‘_ S: the Group S. borrowmgs are pnmanly denomrnated inHong Kong and US dollars and the US doliar loans have
e ._'-'almost fully been eﬁec‘uvely swapped into Hong Kong dollar loans by forward exchange contracts, there is no
o _""srgmfrcant exposure to forergn exchange rate ﬂuctuatrons

ecembf 3 2oo3 (2002"HK$17 923 mnnon)




2003 .
HKS$ Million

(112)*
1,748

1,636

and !oss account
Charged to reserves

'Balance at December31 2002 a ) d;

January 1, 2003 (Restated) _ =

o Charged/(credlted) to the consohdated prof:t

and Ioss account : '

_Charged o} reserVes - -
Effect of change in tax‘ ate charged:to_

“the consé;»ﬁdat‘ez ..profiit;a"r’g’d-;’,l cco

(12) - 121 {115y (6)

150 - (10) (41 99"

Bélancé. at:De‘cémberfa n:,.;'zo:Qaj: s 1,866 364 2 {(596) 1,636 °

b. De.erred tax asse’ts unreccgmsed _
Deferred tax assets have not been recogmsed in respect of the o! owmg iter

2003 ‘ 2002

HKS Miltion ~ HKS$ Million

Deductibie temporary differences R 1 2
Future benefit of tax losses {1,512) (1,418)
(1,511 (1,416)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

28. OTHER DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Group
2003 2002
HKS$ Million HK$ Miiion

,._C‘Iu'b'débéllltures (non-interest bearing) due after more than 5 years } 224 220"
- Deferred reven,uév(Nc_:tev 1 {m) (viii) : 2
. Others. ‘

EFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

2003
HK$ Millicn

2003
HKS$ Million .

(664) -
709
{52)

22 |

.5 :

2003
HKS Million :

14
37




HKS Million

34
34
(40)

>

36

foligws:=

2003

5.0% — 5.5%
5.0% - 7.0% |
N/A
2.0% - 3.5%
3.5% - 4.0%

,Duscount rate: at December 31
Expected rate of return on scheme assets
Future salary increases — 2003 “i
~ 2004 = 2005
~ thereafter ="

e vtk ekt e el e e s A 1NM2



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

30.

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

The: Company has.a share option scheme which was adopted.on June 30, 1998, to reptace a former- scheme

;.prevnously adopted on September 29; 1988 whereby the. Dlrectors of the Company are authonsed at their » )
. -_'rdlscretnon to:invite employees 1ncludmg dlrectors of the Company and/or any of its subsndxanes to take up opt;ons
e :}Eto subscnbe for shares of the Company (the Shares ) The exercnse pnce of the' op’uons must be at Ieast.,the hxgh

2003
Number :

2,551,000

(2,151,000) .

400,000

2003 :
Number

400,000 °

400,000




2003
No. of shares

of compames whych in fum are whoHy owned by ahe farmly mterests of or> by: : f_

‘Chairman of the Company Such transactions. are, conSIdered to be related party transactxons and also
constitute connected: transactions as defined under the Lxstzng Rules
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

_32 CONT!NG:NT LIABILITIES
As at December 31 2003—

‘ Tﬁére 'v‘ver'e'conﬁ'ngent“liabilities in.respect of guarantees given by the Company on behalf of subsidiaries
‘re{atmg to. overdrafts short term loans and credit facilities,'bonds and notes of up to HK$28,562 million

Group
2003 2002, .,
4,873 ) 4,408

1,763




Principal Subsrd;anes and Assocxates
At December 31, 2003 ‘

tH

= o P}ace of’v y
3§ Subsidiaries T mcorporatlonloperatron'
B #Wharf Estates Limited . ang.Kong -
Harbour City ‘ ‘ _
2“ Harbour City Estates Limited ' Hongfi{»qng
ki Wharf Realty Limited Hong Kong. -

3
fEa

: *Harbour Centre Development Limited H’o‘n_g K‘bhd.
;é Times Square R
;‘g Times Square Limited * Hong Kong
% Plaza Hollywood -
E':;? Charris Company Limited v.H_o_ng Kong
;§§ Plaza Hollywood Management Limited Hong Kong
é #Wharf Esiates Development Limited. Hong Kong . “2—,HK$__'31“‘:.sﬁ‘are§ -
°§ Delta Realty Limited Hong-Kong ‘ 2 HK$1 shares—
% Feckenham Limited Hong Kong ) C 2 HK$10 sha{eé
%&; Framenti Company Limited Heng Kong T 2 HKS shares
Zt HKRT Peak Properties Limited Hong Kong 13,000, 000 HK$1O shares
% Hong Tai Yuen Limited Hong Kong 500 OOO HK$1 shares ,
5 New Tech Centre Limited " Hong Kong 10 OOO HKS$1 shares:. B
§ Olinda Limited Hong Kong -2 HK$10 shares o
i: Roville Company Limited Hong Kong : 2 H?}_(E.\ sha;_es Y
B Spring Wealth Investments Limited British Virgin islands 56_0 Us$1 shares
#Whart China Limited Cayman lékands SQO.;QO_O,OQ_O"US"SII"s:_ﬁa‘fes'.k;“. -
Wharf Estates China Limited British Virgin islands -505 :US$I1 s,hé‘res"
Beijing Capital Times Square Development  The People’s Repubiic US$59,00Q;060- ) :
Company Limited of China . DR »
Beijing Times Establishment Property The People’s Republic 1J$$2060,000° 75"‘- Prhc'i'pér-ty‘_rriﬁa‘,r{a‘gementf
Management Company Limited of China ” . R
Shanghai Long Xing Property The People’s Republic US$45,000,000 Co1000 Property o
Development Company Limited of China ' ' o o :
Shanghai Times Square Property The People’s Republic Us$500,000 100 Property man'aéer‘nént‘
Management (Shanghai) of China ' '

Company Limited -
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES {(continued)

issued share capital
{all being ordinary shares Percentage
and fully paid-up except of equity

) .Place of otherwise stated)/  attributable
.- Subsidiaries S incorporationloperation -registered and paid in capital to the Group Principat activities
: ;D J|an Tlmes Square Deveiopment : : The Feoples Republic - RMB200,000,000 60 Property
om od” ' o " _-of China
v_The Peoples Republic US$5,000,000 100 Property

ofChma IR
5 “RMB167,000,000 100 Posery.

US$20,000,000 85. : Property
US$22,330,000 55 Property
©-US$16,566,666 59 Property
5380,000,000 98 Property
2 HK$1 shares 100 ' Holding-company

1 440 000 HK$5 shares 100 Publi@ transport .
' 160 Public transport
- 55 Containér terminal
100 Hok:_l_ing company
100 Hotel mariagement

Hote! and property

" television:services and: . -

St programmxng hcencmg_,- -
HK$4 shares ) 87 o7 internet and "

muitimedia services




o Sobsidiegie's'

' 3#=Wbaffﬁ'°ﬂg Kong 'Umimd'

] Assouates R

' Dnamond Hx! Development Holdmgs letted
Hamman Leasmg lerked i

Hopfleld Holdmgs Lu’mted

Salisburgh Company timited ‘
Kowloon Propertles Company lexted

Crty Super Limited

marked_#..

The above list glvesthe prmcnpal subsndlanes,_and' assoc
affect the proﬁt and assets of-'the Gro P

# Subsndtanes heid dlrecﬂy
* Ltsted compames

JERAURGREY

x,
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Schedule of Principal Properties

At December 31, 2003

_ YEAROF  EXPECTED YEAR ~ LEASE. ' ' -
LOTNUMBER _ COMPLETION  OF COMPLETION  EXPIRY "

KPP 83 1966 2012
PR SKML11 S A, 1977 2880
.Crty, Tstmshatsw SRR h “KML 11 S.8. 1981 2880
Harbour-City,; Tsnmshatsm : L . - KML-11.SB. 1981 2880
7 Ll DL KMETESD. 1983 2880
’ KML 11'5.8.&.D: .1981/83 2880
' KML11RP. 1984 2880
KML 1158.&8D, 11998/ 99 2880
KMEQTSA, " 1968 2863
& KML 1048
KML 91 SA'&KML10S.8. 1869 2863
‘KML11'S:B. 1981 2880
*KML11S.D. 1981 2880
: KPP'6 1990 2006
“IL731,1L 728, 0L 727, 1993 2850/60/80

"JL'7,255A &RP. IL724SA.
CBaRp il a7

* NKIL.6160 1997 2047

2047
2053
2047

2’043» .

KILT13

202778
2029
2035
2027

2028

2047

2006 2031750

o NAA
: Coa0030 2051
- 2005 - 2051
NA 2047

- 32 and’ 33 wgether with: ad;ommg
. lots at Yau Tong Bay.




SITE AREA
{SQ.FT.)

APPROXIMATE GROSS FLOOR A

T INDUSTRIAL -
. .. OFFICEL-
" INDUSTRIAL

OFFICE RETAIL-  RESIDENTIAL

346,719
126,488

(a)
(@)
{a)
(&
(2
(@
(b)

58,814
(a)
(a)
48,309

112,441
280,510

48,438
N/A
N/A
/A
NA

76,728

29,640

32,145

97,670
70,127

49,321
6,100
66,005

165,809

184,926
566,090
2,185,000

10,000 648,000
677,000 224,000
257,000
257,000
512,008 '
386,000
1,128,000 108,000

1,570,000 400,000 670,000

34,000 137,000

1,033,000 936,000

562,000

330,000 65,000
21,000

37,000
32,000
43,000
49,900

97,000

24,700
48,800
120,000

995,100

225,800

115,400
1,571,400
301,000 8,740,000

523,000,
413,000

349,000

.‘FQund‘atidr-\rih‘;prqg:r’gss U
.70 ‘Planning:stage:
1,032 . .‘Plan‘n‘ing.stagej

200 Planning stage . -

Completed Co%
Completed  ~ 33%"

Superstructure in progress 333%
Planning stage 15.6%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES (continued)

YEAROF  EXPECTED YEAR LEASE
o - : COMPLETION - . OF COMPLETION - EXPIRY

investment-propertie:-
‘Beijing Capital Ti j

 Whatf Estates Chinaitimited

1998 2084

1899 . ’ '2643

12030

2045




SITE AREA
{SQ.FT.)

OFFICE RETAIL

RESIDENTIAL - INDUSTRIAL

B

- OFFICES

141,007

148,703

95,799

| 80,482
136,432
170,825
187,670
187,649

118,220

625,000 670,000

331,000 5850004
13,960 724,000
1464,0008 25,300

165,000

131,000

428,000 (pre-sold 310,000's1):

562,000¢

970,000
1,628,004
2,275,008

802,0004



Ten-Year Financial Summary

Restated Restated
1994 1985 1996 1997 1998
HKSMillion HKSMillion . HK3$Milfion HK $Million HK$Million

8,144 ‘6,7,70 ' 8,405 10,980 10,840

_SU3a0r 3605 2239 1882 1,922
SR ol - " (960) (51)

301 3805 . 2239 922 1,871
CI20680 23278 2,503 1,793 1,790

P 93378 85215 98,326 93,434 71,651

LR ti7.048 4,181, 2,769 4,463 . 3,842 !
LLUA.698 . 2328 4324 - 7.824 7,107
<483 - 97 104 238 349°
1,731 : 2128 2,391 2,432 653

SazTis o ioms, 8337 8.777 8,529
L (7548) . (5807) .. (9,589) (8457)  (13,469)

109568 . 98260 . 106662 108711 78,662

72,169 2,300 2,295 2,295
71,729 83,527 75,638 49,624
73898 85827 - 77,933 51,919

3,054 - - ‘
3. c.-18570 . . 15983 25,997 22,322
L2556 4382 4,264 3,903
L& 470 37 518

98260 - 106562 108,711 78,662 -




Summary of Profit and Loss Ascount

Turnover (Note 1)

Group profit attributable to shareholders

Prior year adjustment (Note 2,4 to 6). |

Restated amount

Dividends

Summary of Balance Sheet
Fixed assets (Note 5)

73,36

>

Googdwill - 347"
Long term deposits Sl s 158!
Associates (Note 4) 5,197 4,972 2,075,
Long term investments (Note 4) 5,258 LR80T 1,392
Deferred debtors 506-. 0433 :0 ) 439
Deferred items (Note 5). 575 L B 432
Deferred tax assets (Note 6) = - 112
Current assets 12,536 7390 : 5,089
Current liabilities (Note 3) (10,345) {12,893) 470) (11,150)
..87,089 - 79,610 702 70,002
Representing: ' T
Share capital 2,446 2,446 2,447 2,447 2,647
Reserves (Note 2 to 6) 51,966. 55,504 52,198 45;287: 46,181
Shareholders’ funds 54,412 57,850 54,645 47,734 51,628
Convertible subordinated bonds - - - s -
Long term loan / deferred liabilities (Note 2) 26,802, 17,156 17,441 - ' 12,605
Minarity interests (Note 2, 4 to 6) 5,368 4,026 3,730 4021
Deferred taxation (Note 6) 507 478 467 1,748
79,610 76,283

87,089

Certain figures have been reclassified or restated as set out below:

1. Turnover figures for the years ended December 31, 1997 .and onwards are present

(revised).

ed in.accordantce with _fhé:vfé’cjuvik'er‘n_ v

70,002 "

2. These figures have been restated pursuant to the adoption of SSAP:28.as e)épl'ained‘jnv Note 11b to-the '_a.c'cOUn‘ts'.of-;ZOOL'Eiéur_és for
1999 and prior years have not been restated as it would involve delay. and expenses out of proportion to. the benefit:to.shareholders. -

3. These figures have been restated pursuant to the adeption of SSAP 3 (revised) as.explained in Note 1 Tcto the accounts of:2001.

Figures for 1989 and prior years have not been restated as it would involve delay and expenses o

shareholders.

ut of proportion to‘the benefit to

4. These figures have been restated pursuant 1o the adoption of SSAP 24 as explained in Note 10 to the 1999 accounts. Figures. for 1996
and prior years have not been restated as it would involve delay and expenses out of proportion.to.the benefit to shareholders.

5. These figures have been restated pursuant to the adoption of Interpretation 9 “ Accounting for pre-operating costs” as explained in.
Note 8 to 2000 accounts. Figures for 1997 and prior years have not been restated as it would involve delay and expenses out of

proportion to the benefit to shareholders.

6. These figures have been restated pursuant to the adoption of SSAP 12 (revised) as explained in Note 11 to the accounts of 2003.
Figures for 2001 and prior years have not been restated as it would involve delay and expenses cut of proportion to the benefit to

shareholders.
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